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Objectives of this Paper  

1. This Issues Paper summarizes the responses to ED 53 First-time Adoption of Accrual Basis 
International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs) and provides a staff assessment of the 
issues arising. It also seeks direction from the IPSASB on certain issues raised by respondents with 
a view to finalize the pronouncement at the September 2014 meeting. 

Background   

2. ED 53 was issued in October 2013, with a request for comments by 15 February 2014. The 
IPSASB received a high level overview of responses at its March 2014 meeting. This paper and 
related analysis considers the full set of 25 responses, including a request from one respondent 
that the comment provided should not be made publicly available.  

3. ED 53 included three specific matters for comment (SMCs). Most of the respondents structured 
their responses to address the three SMCs. The collation of responses in Agenda Item X.2 follows 
this structure, starting with general comments on the ED as a whole (section 1), followed by the 
responses to each of the SMCs (section 2). Where a response to a SMC addresses more than one 
issue, staff has restructured the comments so that they relate to the SMC that was asked. 
Comments received on the SMCs are followed by other comments raised on the principles in the 
ED (section 3). The collation of responses does not include a summary of editorial comments 
received. The collation of responses also includes staff comment on the issues raised, where 
appropriate.  

4. Responses to the SMCs are structured according to whether they are supported, partially 
supported, whether the respondent disagreed with the SMC, or whether the respondent did not 
specifically comment on the SMC. Judgment has been applied by staff, and therefore, the analysis 
in this memorandum and the attached analysis should be read in conjunction with respondents’ 
detailed responses as included in X.2.  

5. The views include those of the staff only. The analysis of responses was provided to the TBG 
members during May 2014 for their input. 

Section 1 – General comments  

Support for the development of ED 53 

6. Even though no specific matter for comment was asked on the overall support for the development 
of the ED, most respondents included an overall response on this issue. A summary of the overall 
level of support for the development of the ED is summarized in Table 1 below. 

Table 1, Overview of Support for development of ED 

 Support Support with 
Exceptions 

No comment 
or unclear 

Total 

General 
comment 

16 2 

(R6, R11) 

7 25 

7. One respondent (R21) noted that, because the ED allows for a transitional period that impacts the 
first-time adopter’s ability to assert compliance with accrual basis IPSASs and fair presentation of 
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the financial statements, the development of a separate RPG was suggested, that lists support 
available and practice collected from successful experiences. Staff notes that a number of surveys 
and reports have been published on the IFAC website on experiences in transitioning to accrual 
accounting, such as the publication by the United States of America on the Road to Accrual 
Accounting. As a result, staff is of the view that a separate RPG is not necessary. Equally, the type 
of material requested is not appropriate for a RPG, but rather a study (as demonstrated by past 
publications).   

8. Respondent R6 indicated that the exemptions that affect fair presentation and compliance with 
IPSASs should rather be included in a RPG. This respondent was of the view that the transitional 
exemptions should be recommendations that could be adopted by a first-time adopter. The 
transitional exemptions and provisions that do not affect fair presentation and compliance should 
remain in the proposed IPSAS. This respondent commented that the development of temporary 
transitional exemptions (i.e. those that do affect fair presentation and the ability to assert 
compliance with accrual basis IPSASs) do not fall within the remit of the IPSASB. Likewise, 
respondent R11 commented that only exemptions that will not affect fair presentation should have a 
Standard status1.  

9. Staff is of the view that because most respondents supported the development of the ED, a RPG 
should not be developed. Locating the transitional exemptions and provisions in a single 
pronouncement, gives preparers a better understanding of the impact that the various transition 
exemptions and provisions will have on their financial statements during the period of transition. If a 
RPG is developed, then the length of time taken to adopt, along with other exemptions will merely 
be recommendations. This means that preparers will not be required to follow these 
recommendations which will impair the credibility of the financial statements during the period of 
transition. By separating the exemptions that do not affect fair presentation and compliance from 
those that do, staff is of the view that the first time adoption IPSAS will not comprise a 
comprehensive set of principles. Staff is therefore of the view that a single pronouncement, i.e. an 
IPSAS, that provides a single reference to all transitional exemptions and provisions that should be 
considered on adoption of accrual basis IPSAS, is appropriate. 

Action Requested: 

1.    Members are asked to indicate whether they agree with the staff proposal to proceed with the 
development of the final IPSAS and that the pronouncement should include all transitional 
exemptions and provisions, irrespective of whether they affect compliance and fair 
presentation.  

Section 2 – Specific matters for Comment 

SMC 1(a) – Transitional exemptions included in Exposure Draft 

10. SMC 1(a) asked respondents whether they agree with the proposed transitional exemptions and 
provisions included in ED 53. Thirteen respondents (R2, R3, R9, R12, R13, R14, R16, R17, R18, 
R19, R20, R22 and R24) agreed with the proposed transitional exemptions and provisions and did 
not have any further proposals.  

1 In responding to SMC 1 and2, respondents R6 and R11 again raised this issue. To avoid duplication, these have not been raised 
again under each of these sections in this Issue paper.   
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11. Eight respondents (R4, R5, R7, R8, R10, R15, R21 and R23) partially agreed with the proposed 
transitional exemptions and provisions, but either proposed additional transitional exemptions or 
provisions, or had concerns with the three year transitional relief period. As there is a specific 
matter for comment requesting views on the three year relief period, comment received on this 
matter is considered in the section that deals with responses to SMC3. Additional proposed 
transitional exemptions or provisions that require the IPSASB’s consideration are highlighted in 
section 3.  

12. There was, however, overall support expressed for the transitional exemptions and provisions 
included in the Exposure Draft. Twenty respondents positively supported the proposed transitional 
exemptions and provisions while two respondents (R1 and R25) did not comment on the specific 
matter for comment. Specific concerns in relation to the three year relief period and comment 
received on other issues are addressed in section 3.  

Action Requested: 

2.  Members are asked to note the support for the proposed transitional exemptions and 
provisions.  

SMC 1(b) – Goal in providing relief to first-time adopters 

13. SMC 1(b) asked respondents whether the IPSASB has achieved its goal in providing appropriate 
relief to first-time adopters in transitioning to accrual basis IPSASs. Eighteen respondents (R3, R4, 
R5, R7, R9, R10, R12, R13, R14, R15, R16, R17, R18, R19, R21, R22, R23 and R24) agreed that 
the IPSASB has achieved this objective.  

14. Two respondents (R6 and R8) partially agreed that the IPSASB achieved its goal. R6 commented 
that the list of temporary exemptions and the length of the transitional period are insufficient to fully 
support the IPSASB meeting its goal. 

15. Respondent R8 indicated that the IPSASB should do more to help first-time adopters in their 
transition to accrual accounting, but details of what more they expected from the IPSASB were not 
provided.    

16. Staff is of the view that, as the specific issues relating to first-time adoption are likely to vary from 
jurisdiction to jurisdiction, individual jurisdictions need to play their own role in the development of 
additional implementation guidance to assist first-time adopters in their transition to accrual basis 
IPSASs. This also seems to be the view supported by the majority of respondents to ED 53.   

Action Requested: 

3.   Members are asked to note that respondents agreed that the IPSASB has achieved its goal to 
provide appropriate relief to a first-time adopter in transitioning to accrual basis IPSASs.  

SMC 2(a) – Differentiation between transitional exemptions that affect fair presentation and ability 
to assert compliance, and those that do not 

17. SMC 2(a) asked respondents whether they support the differentiation between those transitional 
exemptions and provisions that do not affect the fair presentation of a first-time adopter`s financial 
statements and its ability to assert compliance with accrual basis IPSASs, and those that do.   

18. Nineteen respondents (R1, R2, R3, R4, R5, R7, R9, R12, R13, R14, R15, R16, R17, R18, R19, 
R20, R22, R23 and R24) agreed with the proposed differentiation in ED 53.  
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19. Respondent R10 proposed the use of more neutral terms to distinguish transitional exemptions and 
provisions that can be adopted on the initial adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. The respondent 
noted that by indicating that certain principles in IPSASs either do, or do not affect compliance and 
fair presentation on first-time adoption, it may set a precedent for the application of those principles 
going forward. The respondent therefore proposed that more neutral terms should be used to 
categorize the transitional exemptions and provisions, such as “voluntary transitional exemptions 
and provisions” and “mandatory transitional exemptions and provisions” to avoid a precedent of not 
complying with accrual basis IPSASs after adoption. An explanation of the potential consequences 
of applying certain transitional exemptions and provisions needs to be included in the 
pronouncement to explain the effect that it may have on the entity’s fair presentation and its ability 
to assert compliance with accrual basis IPSASs.  

20. Even though the IPSASB may have considered the format of presenting transitional exemptions 
and provisions prior to the issue of the ED for comment, staff has included Appendix A illustrating 
what the effect of this reclassification of the existing transitional exemptions and provisions under 
the categories will be.  

Action Requested: 

4.  Members are asked to indicate whether they support the categorization of transitional 
exemptions and provisions as set out in Appendix A, or whether the format in ED 53 should be 
retained.      

21. Respondent R10 also commented that entities should be required to apply judgment in assessing 
the effect that applying specific transitional exemptions and provisions will have on its fair 
presentation and ability to assert compliance with accrual basis IPSAS in relation to the entity’s 
specific circumstances. It may be that, even though a first-time adopter elected to apply one or 
more of the transitional exemptions and provisions that impact fair presentation and its ability to 
assert compliance with accrual basis IPSASs, fair presentation may still be achieved when the 
recognition and/or measurement of the item, transaction or event exempted is not significant or 
material in relation to the financial statements as a whole.  

22. In addressing this comment, staff proposed the inclusion of the following paragraphs after 
paragraph 25: 

“25A  A first-time adopter shall apply judgment in assessing to what extent the 
transitional exemptions adopted affect the fair presentation of the financial 
statements and the first-time adopter’s ability to assert compliance with 
accrual basis IPSASs during the period of transition. 

25B     For example, a first-time adopter adopts the three year transitional relief period for 
the recognition and measurement of traffic fines because insufficient data is 
available about the value of fines issued, values written off, the compromises 
reached with offenders etc. The relief period is not applied to any other class of 
non-exchange revenue. The revenue received from fines is not material in relation 
to the financial statements as a whole. In applying judgment, the entity concludes 
that, by adopting the transitional exemption and provisions, fair presentation and 
compliance with IPSASs will not be affected. As a result, the first-time adopter will 
still be able to achieve fair presentation and assert compliance with accrual basis 
IPSASs during the period of transition.” 
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23. Respondent R8 agreed with the differentiation but noted concerns around the lack of supporting 
documents on the date of adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. Staff notes that the proposed ED 
includes guidance around the application of deemed cost to address those circumstances where no 
cost records are available on adoption of accrual basis IPSASs.  

24. Respondent R8 commented that by allowing a first-time adopter to apply an exemption to the 
recognition and/or measurement of certain assets and/or liabilities may result in financial 
statements not providing useful information to the users of financial statements.  

25. Staff notes that, the IPSASB was of the view that, to encourage entities to adopt accrual basis 
IPSASs, some relief had to be provided to ease the adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. To 
address this concern, the ED proposed detailed disclosures about the transitional exemptions 
and provisions adopted, and how these affected the financial position, financial performance 
and cash flows, where appropriate. 

26. Respondent R21 questioned the ability of a first-time adopter to not claim compliance with IPSASs 
during the period of transition where it adopts certain transitional exemptions or provisions. The 
respondent noted that during the transitional period, the first-time adopter and the external auditor 
will not be able to assess the compliance of the financial statements against a particular 
reporting framework. 

27. Staff notes that, even though a first-time adopter may not comply with all the accrual basis IPSASs 
during the period of transition following the adoption of certain transitional exemptions and 
provisions that impact fair presentation and compliance, acknowledging that the IPSAS on First-
time Adoption of Accrual Basis IPSASs has been applied during the period of transition, should be 
sufficient and acceptable in presenting financial statements during the period of transition to the 
users of financial statements. The disclosures required by the ED, as noted in paragraph 25 above, 
will also assist an assessment of compliance.    

Action Requested: 

5.   Members are asked to: 

(a)   note the support for the differentiation of the transitional exemptions and provisions 
between those that affect fair presentation and a first-time adopter’s ability to assert 
compliance with accrual bass IPSASs, and those that do not; and  

(b)   indicate whether they agree with the staff proposal to include the paragraph as 
proposed in paragraph 22 to indicate that a first-time adopter should apply judgement 
in determining the extent to which the transitional exemptions and provisions affect its 
ability to fairly present its financial statements and compliance with accrual basis 
IPSASs during the period of transition. 

SMC 2(b) – Individual categorization of transitional exemptions that affect fair presentation and 
ability to assert compliance, and those that do not 

28. SMC 2(b) asked whether respondents agreed with the individual categorization of transitional 
exemptions and provisions that affect fair presentation and the ability of the first-time adopter to 
assert compliance, and those that do not. 
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29. Eighteen respondents (R1, R2, R3, R5, R6, R7, R9, R12, R13, R14, R16, R17, R18, R19, 
R20, R22, R23 and R24) agreed with the individual categorization of the transitional 
exemptions and provisions. 

30. Respondent R10 noted its disagreement with the categorization of IPSAS 18. In their view, not 
presenting a segment report during a three year transitional period will impact fair presentation 
and a first-time adopter’s ability to assert compliance with accrual basis IPSASs. The 
respondent noted that, even though IPSAS 18 only provides additional information on the 
elements presented in the financial statements, it is still necessary for a first-time adopter to comply 
with the requirements in this Standard before compliance with accrual basis IPSASs can be 
claimed. As the segment report often provides an important linkage between the financial 
statements and service performance information, they noted that this information is important in 
assessing both financial and non-financial performance and contributes to accountability and 
decision-making. 

31. Staff is of the view that the explanation in the Basis for Conclusions could be elaborated to explain 
the IPSASBs rationale as to why not presenting a segment report will, in its view, not affect fair 
presentation and the first-time adopter’s ability to assert compliance with accrual basis IPSASs.  
The following clarification in BC 84 and BC 85 are proposed: 

“BC84 As the IPSASB agreed to allow a three year transitional relief period for the recognition 
and/or measurement of assets and liabilities, the information which is needed to present 
segment information may only be available when the exemptions that provided the relief 
have expired, or when the relevant items are recognized and/or measured in accordance 
with the applicable IPSASs (whichever is earlier). Presenting a segment report for assets 
and liabilities that may not be recognized and/or measured in accordance with accrual 
basis IPSAS will not provide relevant and reliable information to the users of the financial 
statements. As a result, it was agreed that a three year exemption period should be 
allowed in terms of which the first-time adopter will not be required to present segment 
information. 

BC85 The IPSASB also concluded that not requiring a first-time adopter to present a segment 
report for a period of three years will not affect fair presentation of financial statements 
and the first-time adopter’s ability to assert compliance with accrual basis IPSASs as The 
IPSASB concluded that, because segment information provides information which is 
presented in addition to the information required on the elements presented in the 
financial statements, allowing this relief for a first-time adopter will be appropriate.”     

Action Requested: 

6.    Members are asked to: 

(a)  note the support for the individual categorization of transitional exemptions and 
provisions that affect fair presentation and compliance with accrual basis IPSASs; and  

(b)    indicate whether they agree with the wording as proposed in paragraph 31 that clarifies 
why not presenting a segment report during the transitional period will not affect fair 
presentation and compliance with accrual basis IPSASs.     
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SMC 3 – Three year relief period for the recognition and/or measurement of specific assets and/or 
liabilities  

32. SMC 3 asked whether respondents agree with the three year relief period that is provided for 
the recognition and/or measurement of certain assets and liabilities. 

33. Eleven respondents (R3, R10, R12, R13, R14, R16, R17, R18, R19, R20 and R22) supported 
the three year relief period and noted that it is a manageable time period.   

34. Eight respondents (R1, R2, R5, R7, R9, R15, R23 and R24) did not support the three year 
transitional period and had various alternative proposals. 

35. Four respondents (R6, R8, R11 and R21) proposed that each country should determine its own 
transitional period. 

36. One respondent (R4) disagreed with the provision of a relief period and proposed alternatives for a 
first-time adopter to transition to accrual accounting.  

37. The responses to this SMC are summarized in Table 2 below. 

Table 2, Prescribing a three year relief period  

Agree with three year relief Agree that relief 
should be 
provided but 
proposed 
different period 

 Relief period 
should be 
determined by 
each jurisdiction 
not IPSASB 

No relief period 
should be 
provided (follow 
an alternative 
approach) 

 One to two 
years 

R5 R6, R8, R11, 
R21 

R4 

(R3, R10, R12, R13, R14, 
R16, R17, R18, R19, R20 
and R22) 

Three to five 
years 

R1, R9   

 Five years R23   

 Five to fifteen 
years 

R2   

 Depends on 
country’s 
readiness 

R7   

 More than 3 
years (but no 
alternative time) 

R15, R24   

TOTAL     

11 respondents  8 respondents 4 respondents 1 respondent 
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Alternative relief periods 

38. Respondent R5 proposed a relief period of one to two years, while R1 noted that the proposed 
period should be between three and five years. Likewise R9 indicated that the three years should 
be considered as a minimum up to a maximum of five years. 

39. Respondent R24 noted that a three year relief period may be too short, but did not propose an 
alternative period. R23 indicated that a five year transitional period would be better. 

40. Respondent R15 also noted that a three year relief period may be too short and proposed an 
approach whereby a ‘disclosure approach’ should be followed. In terms of this approach, an entity 
should clearly articulate and disclose in the reporting periods prior to full adoption, the potential 
adjustments and reconciliations from the old to the new reporting accounting standards as and 
when the amendments are determined during the transition period. If this approach is followed, they 
are of the view that a transition period of five years will be more realistic.  

41. Respondent R7 noted that if the entity has gathered all the necessary information on assets and 
liabilities prior to its transition to accrual basis IPSASs, a three year relief period would be sufficient, 
but if all the relevant information is not gathered, three years will be too short.  

42. Respondent R2 noted that a five to ten year relief period will be more appropriate for the 
implementation of accrual basis IPSASs if the entity has already implemented the cash basis 
IPSASs. However, five to fifteen years should be allowed when the implementation of the cash 
basis IPSASs has not been applied. 

43. Staff notes the comment on alternative relief periods, but is of the view that a three year transitional 
relief period should be retained as it is more manageable, and reduces the period over which 
entities will not be able to assert compliance with IPSASs. The relief period provided in this IPSAS 
should not be seen as a complete roadmap for the adoption of accrual basis IPSASs, but rather the 
end stage of their adoption. Jurisdictions should plan well in advance and put in place appropriate 
plans in their transition to accrual basis IPSASs. 

44. Staff proposes that the following clarification should be included in BC37 to explain that entities 
should plan for their transition to accrual basis IPSAS: 

BC37 To encourage entities to prepare for the adoption of IPSASs in advance of preparation of 
their transitional IPSAS financial statements, or their first IPSAS financial statements, the 
IPSASB agreed that a grace period not exceeding of three years grace period should be 
allowed. As entities should prepare well in advance for their transition to accrual basis 
IPSASs and not solely rely on the relief period provided in this IPSAS, the IPSASB is of 
the view that the A three year transitional period is also more manageable, and reduces 
the period over which entities will not be able to assert compliance with IPSASs.” 

Action Requested: 

7.   Members are asked to indicate the whether they agree with the wording as proposed in 
paragraph 44 that clarifies that entities should plant in advance for their transition to accrual 
basis IPSASs.  
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Jurisdictions should determine their own transitional period 

45. R6 noted that the relief period of three years is too short, and that countries adopting IPSASs 
should determine their own transitional period. This respondent noted that the length of the 
transition period, as well as the exemptions provided in the IPSASs depends on whether the entity 
transitions from a cash or an accrual basis, as well as the resources that each jurisdiction dedicated 
for the transition to accrual basis IPSASs. A similar view was expressed by respondents R8 and 
R11 who noted that the period should depend on how prepared an entity is at the date of adoption 
of IPSASs. They also noted that every country should establish its own strategy according to the 
degree of complexity of its current accounting, technical and political conditions. 

46. R21 noted that they do not agree that a transitional period should be set by the IPSASB. Instead, 
each entity adopting accrual basis IPSAS should define its transitional period based on, amongst 
others, the size, the complexity, the activities and the public sector deliveries.  

47. Staff is of the view that determining a transitional period should not be left to each entity adopting 
accrual basis IPSASs as this would result in inconsistency between entities within the jurisdictions, 
and would impair the credibility and comparability of financial statements during the transitional 
adoption.   

Support to not provide a relief period at all 

48. R4 indicated that a first-time adopter should not be allowed a relief period at all. In their view, the 
inclusion of relief periods in the transitional exemptions and provisions adds complexity and 
reduces the understandability of the financial statements. They propose two alternatives: (a) allow 
either retrospective or prospective adoption of accrual basis IPSASs, or (b) allow an entity to 
determine deemed cost on the date of adoption to make the adoption less complex.  

49. Staff is of the view that a first-time adopter should be allowed a relief period, as this promotes the 
adoption of accrual basis IPSASs and allows entities more time to develop appropriate systems and 
models for recognizing and measuring its assets and/or liabilities.  

Action Requested: 

8. Members are asked to note the different views concerning the proposed relief period of three 
years; and  

9. Members are asked to confirm it previous view that a relief period of three years is sufficient 
because it is more manageable and will reduce the period over which entities will not be able 
to assert compliance with IPSASs? 

Other matters 

50. R10 proposed that the Implementation Guidance should explain that where a first-time adopter 
takes advantage of a three year relief period for the recognition and/or measurement of assets, it 
should not derecognise any of its assets that were recognised under its previous basis of 
accounting, and that any exemption will then apply to the measurement of its assets and/or 
liabilities. Staff supports this clarification and agrees that it should be explained in the 
Implementation Guidance.  
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Action Requested: 

10.   Members are asked to indicate whether they agree with the staff proposal to clarify, in the 
Implementation Guidance, that a first-time adopter who takes advantage of the three year 
relief period should not derecognize any of its existing assets and/or liabilities that were 
recognized under its previous basis of accounting.    

Section 3 – Comments on specific principles in the ED 

51. Some respondents also provided comments on specific principles included in the ED. The most 
significant matters are highlighted in this section of the Issues Paper for members’ consideration. 

Drafting of the proposed IPSAS 

52. Two respondents (R15 and R20) questioned the format of the proposed IPSAS. R15 noted that 
they found the wording in the ED to be somewhat difficult to follow and, in some instances, 
repetitive. They suggested that the final IPSAS should follow a similar structure to that in IFRS 1, 
i.e. the overarching principles should be stated clearly with the details regarding exemptions for 
relief provided in an Appendix. 

53. Likewise, respondent R20 noted that the drafting of the ED is not sufficiently clear and will be 
difficult for preparers to understand. They also proposed that the IFRS 1 format should be 
considered where the main principles are included in the ED and supporting detail is included in an 
Appendix. 

54. Staff notes that the IPSASB did debate the format of the proposed IPSAS and agreed that all the 
principles should be included in the IPSAS to improve the understandability of the ED. It was also 
agreed that a different structure should be followed from IFRS 1 as the project was not a 
convergence project. The IPSASB also agreed that Implementation Guidance should be developed 
to illustrate certain requirements of the ED.    

Action Requested: 

11. Members are asked to indicate whether they support the current format of the proposed 
pronouncement, or whether an alternative, such as the IFRS 1 structure, should rather be 
used.     

Transitional provisions for future IPSASs 

55. Respondent R4 noted that clarification is needed in the Basis for Conclusions to explain that when 
new IPSASs are issued, transitional provisions will be included in the new IPSAS to address 
transitional issues for those entities that already apply accrual basis IPSAS. The explanatory 
paragraphs in the Basis for Conclusions currently can be taken to say that entities already following 
accrual basis IPSASs will need to refer to the first-time standard for the transitional provisions.   

56. Staff propose that the following wording should be added to BC6 for clarification: 

BC6. When the IPSASB issues new pronouncements, it will consider specific transitional 
provisions to be included in this proposed IPSAS that will provide relief to a first-time 
adopter. Transitional provisions for entities already applying accrual basis IPSASs will be 
included in the new pronouncement.”  
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Action Requested: 

12.  Members are asked to indicate whether they support the proposed wording in paragraph 56 to 
clarify how transitional provisions for new pronouncements will be developed.     

Definitions 

57. R10 raised concerns about the phrase “beginning of the earliest period for which an entity presents 
its first transitional IPSAS financial statements” in the definition for “date of adoption”. This 
respondent noted that the phrase could be interpreted to include the beginning of the comparative 
period where a first-time adopter has elected to present comparative information. While this is 
accurate, it may effectively reduce the relief period granted to entities if they prepare comparative 
information.  

58. Staff supports the proposal to amend the definition to clarify this matter. The following amendments 
are proposed to the definition of “date of adoption”: 

Date of adoption of IPSASs is the date an entity adopts accrual basis IPSASs for the 
first time, and is the start of the reporting period in which the first-time adopter elects 
to adopt accrual basis IPSASs and beginning of the earliest period for which the entity 
presents its first transitional IPSAS financial statements or its first IPSAS financial 
statements. 

Action Requested: 

13.  Members are asked to indicate whether they agree with the staff proposal to amend the 
definition of date of adoption as proposed in paragraph 58.  

59. Respondent R15 and R20 noted that paragraph 11 seems to incorrectly imply that the expiration of 
exemptions is a sufficient condition to allow an entity to make an unreserved declaration of 
compliance. Respondent R20 also noted that the paragraph should be clarified to explain that a 
first-time adopter cannot re-adopt the transitional exemptions and provisions in the proposed ED 
once the exemptions that provided the relief, have expired. Paragraph 11 reads as follow: 

“If a first-time adopter adopts the exemptions in this IPSASs that affect fair presentation and 
compliance with accrual basis IPSASs (see paragraphs 32–60), it will not be able to make an 
explicit and unreserved statement of compliance with other accrual basis IPSASs until the 
exemptions that provided the relief in this IPSAS have expired and/or when the relevant items 
are recognized, measured and/or the relevant information has been presented and/or 
disclosed in accordance with the applicable IPSASs (whichever is earlier).” 

60. Respondents R5, R6 and R7 also questioned what will happen if an entity announces that it is 
adopting IPSASs and yet fails to be fully compliant within the three year period. Staff is of the view 
that, unless the first-time adopter complies in full with all the applicable IPSASs at the end of the 
transitional period, it cannot make an explicit and unreserved statement about such compliance as 
required in IPSAS 1.    

61. Staff agrees with the observations made and proposes the following amendment to paragraph 11 
(and elsewhere in the ED where appropriate) and the inclusion of an additional paragraph after 
paragraph 11 to address respondents concerns: 
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“11. …..basis IPSASs until the exemptions that provided the relief in this IPSAS have expired 
and/or when the relevant items are recognized, measured and/or the relevant information has 
been presented and/or disclosed in accordance with the applicable IPSASs (whichever is 
earlier), subject to the first-time adopter complying with all the requirements in all the 
applicable IPSASs. Once the transitional exemptions in this IPSAS have expired, a first-time 
adopter cannot adopt the transitional exemptions for a second time.  

11A “A first-time adopter will only be able to make a statement of compliance with IPSASs as 
required in IPSAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements, if at the end of the transitional 
period, it complies with all the applicable IPSASs ” 

Action Requested: 

14. Members are asked to indicate whether they agree with the staff’s proposal and the 
proposed wording in paragraph 61 to clarify that a first-time adopter cannot adopt the 
transitional exemptions in this IPSAS for a second time, and that they can only claim 
compliance with accrual basis IPSASs if, at the end of the transitional period, they have 
complied with all the applicable IPSASs.   

First transitional IPSAS financial statements  

62. Respondent R20 noted that when an entity’s recent previous financial statements have been 
prepared in accordance with IPSASs, but the entity did not make such a statement, those financial 
statements would be the first ‘IPSAS financial statements’ rather than the ‘transitional IPSAS 
financial statements’. This is, however, inconsistent with the current requirement in paragraph 12 
(b)(ii) of ED 53.     

63. Staff agrees with the observations made because a first-time adopter that has complied with 
accrual basis IPSASs in the most recent previous financial statements without making an explicit 
and reserved statement about such compliance will be presenting its first IPSAS financial 
statements and not its first transitional IPSAS financial statements.  Staff therefore proposes that 
paragraph 12(b)(ii) should be deleted. 

12. An entity’s transitional IPSAS financial statements are those financial statements, for 
example, where the entity transitions from another accounting basis such as when it:…..  

(b) Presented its most recent previous financial statements: 

(i) …..; 

(ii) In conformity with IPSASs in all respects, except that the financial statements did not 
contain an explicit and unreserved statement that they complied with IPSASs; …” 

Action Requested: 

15. Members are asked to indicate whether they agree with staff’s proposal to deleted the 
requirement in paragraph 12(b)(ii).  

Transitional relief for the recognition and/or measurement of inventory 

64. R10 and R23 noted that a three year transitional relief period for the recognition and/or 
measurement of inventory has not been provided in the proposed IPSAS. These respondents noted 
that, even though inventory is a current asset which is realised, consumed, sold or used in an 
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entity’s operating cycle, an entity adopting accrual basis IPSASs for the first-time may need time to 
identify and classify its assets appropriately between inventory, investment property or property, 
plant and equipment, particularly in respect of land. Inventory may also comprise specialized assets 
and entities may have high volumes of these assets.  

65. Staff supports the proposal that a three year relief period should also be provided for the 
recognition and/or measurement of inventory. The following amendment to paragraph 32 is 
therefore proposed by staff: 

“32. Where a first-time adopter has not recognized assets and/or liabilities under its 
previous basis of accounting, it is not required to recognize the following assets 
and/or liabilities for reporting periods beginning on a date within three years 
following the date of adoption of IPSASs: 

(a) Inventory (see IPSAS 12, Inventory); 

(b) Investment property (see IPSAS 16, Investment Property); 

(c) Property, plant and equipment (see IPSAS 17, Property, Plant and Equipment)…” 

Action requested: 

16. Members are asked to indicate whether they agree with the staff proposal to also provide 
a three year relief period for the recognition and/or measurement of inventory as proposed 
in paragraph 65.  

Transitional relief for the recognition and/or measurement per class of assets 

66. Three respondents (R4, R10 and R15) questioned whether the requirements relating to the 
adoption of the three year relief period applies to all assets or asset categories. If they apply to 
asset categories, it was further questioned whether a first-time adopter will be able to recognize 
specific categories of assets at different points in time during the transitional period. 

67. Staff agrees that clarity is needed on this matter. The transitional exemptions for non-exchange 
revenue refer to different classes of non-exchange revenue. Staff is of the view that similar relief 
should be provided for the recognition and/or measurement of different classes of assets. In 
clarifying this requirement, staff proposes the following amendment to paragraph 36: 

36. “Subject to the provisions of paragraphs 32 and 34, a first-time adopter shall only 
change its accounting policies during the period of transition to better conform to 
the accounting policies in accrual basis IPSASs, and may retain its existing 
accounting policies until the exemptions that provided the relief have expired or 
when the relevant items are recognized and/or measured in the financial statements 
in accordance with the applicable IPSASs (whichever is earlier, subject to the first-
time adopter complying with all the requirements in all the applicable IPSASs. A first-
time adopter may change it accounting policy in respect of the recognition of assets 
on a class-by-class basis where the use of classes is permitted in the applicable 
IPSAS.” 
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Action Requested: 

17. Members are asked to indicate whether they agree with the staff proposal that: 

(a) a first-time adopter will be able to recognize specific classes of assets at different 
points in time during the transitional period; and  

(b) if they agree, whether they agree with the amendment proposed in paragraph 67 to 
clarify the application.  

Retrospective application of borrowing costs 

68. Respondent R7 noted that ED proposes that when a first-time adopter elects to account for 
borrowing costs using the allowed alternative treatment, it is not required to capitalise borrowing 
costs until the three-year relief period for recognising and/or measuring assets has expired and/or 
the relevant assets are recognised and/or measured in accordance with the applicable IPSAS 
whichever is earlier. However, the proposals do not preclude an entity from capitalising its 
borrowing costs before the asset is recognised and/or measured, which could result in only the 
borrowing costs, and not the relevant asset, being recognised in the financial statements. 

69. Staff agrees that clarity is needed on the matter and proposes the following amendment to 
paragraph 42: 

42.   “Where a first-time adopter takes advantage of the exemption in paragraph 32 which 
allows a three year transitional relief period to not recognize and/or measure assets, 
and elects to account for borrowing costs in terms of the allowed alternative 
treatment, it shall is not required to capitalize any borrowing costs on qualifying 
assets for which the commencement date for capitalization is prior to the date of 
adoption of accrual basis IPSASs…..” 

Action Requested: 

18. Members are asked to indicate whether they agree with the staff proposal to amend 
paragraph 42 to clarify that a first-time adopter shall not be required to capitalize any 
borrowing costs on qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalization is 
prior to the date of adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. 

Initial classification and identification of a first-time adopter’s interest in another entity  

70. Two respondents (R6 and R10) noted that there is no transitional relief provided in the proposed 
ED for the classification and identification of interests in controlled entities, associates and jointly 
controlled entities. These respondents noted that a first-time adopter is allowed time to recognise 
and/or measure financial instruments, which means that it has three years to assess what 
investments it holds in other entities, and how they should be classified and measured.  

71. The respondents proposed that relief should be provided for the classification and identification of 
interests in controlled entities, associates and jointly controlled entities on the initial adoption of 
accrual basis IPSASs. Staff supports this proposal to ensure that the relief provided for the 
recognition and/or measurement of financial instruments is consistent with the relief provided for 
interests in controlled entities, associates and jointly controlled entities.  
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72. Staff proposes that, consistent with the relief period provided for other assets and/or liabilities, a 
three year transitional relief period should be allowed to classify and identify a first-time adopter’s 
interest in in controlled entities, associates and jointly controlled entities on the initial adoption of 
accrual basis IPSAS. The following paragraph is proposed for inclusion after paragraph 44: 

44 A first-time adopter shall present consolidated financial statements following the 
adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. A first-time adopter is, however, not required to 
eliminate all balances, transactions, revenue and expenses between entities within 
the economic entity for reporting periods beginning on a date within three years 
following the date of adoption of IPSASs.  

44A Where a first-time adopter has not previously recognized its interest in controlled 
entities, associates and jointly controlled entities under its previous basis of 
accounting and has taken advantage of the transitional exemption in paragraph 32 to 
not recognize financial instruments for a period of three years, it is allowed, for a 
period of up to three years following the adoption of accrual basis IPSASs, to 
identify and appropriately classify its interests in other entities. 

Action Requested: 

19. Members are asked to indicate whether: 
(a) they agree with the staff proposal to also provide a three year relief period for the 

identification and classification of a first-time adopter’s interest in controlled entities, 
associates and jointly controlled entities to the extent that these interests are not 
recognized under its previous basis of accounting; and 

(b) if yes, whether they agree with the wording as proposed in paragraph 72. 

Exemption to not prepare consolidated financial statements where a first-time adopter has taken 
advantage of transitional exemptions and provisions relating to consolidations 

73. Two respondents (R10 and R23) commented that, to the extent that an entity has taken advantage 
of the exemption to not eliminate all balances, transactions, revenue and expenses between 
entities within the economic entity for reporting periods beginning on a date within three years 
following the date of adoption of IPSASs, presenting consolidated financial statements during this 
transitional period will not provide reliable and relevant information to the users of the financial 
statements, despite the proposed disclosure requirements in the ED. Respondent R11 also noted 
that to the extent that an entity has taken advantage of relief during the transitional period, it should 
not be required to prepare consolidated financial statements at the same time or during the 
transitional period. These respondents proposed that relief should also be provided for the 
preparation of consolidated financial statements until such time as all the inter-entity balances, 
transactions, revenue and expenses can be eliminated.  

74. Staff supports the proposal that relief should be provided from preparing consolidated financial 
statements where a first-time adopter adopts the exemption to eliminate balances, transactions, 
revenue and expenses within the economic entity. Staff proposes that the following paragraph 
should be included after paragraph 44 in providing this relief: 

44B Where a first-time adopter has taken advantage of the transitional exemption in 
paragraph 44 to not eliminate all balances, transactions, revenue and expenses 

Agenda Item 6.1 
15 



Issues Paper 
IPSASB Meeting (June 2014) 

between entities within the economic entity for a period of three years following the 
adoption of accrual basis IPSASs, it shall not present consolidated financial 
statements until the exemptions that provided the relief have expired and/or the inter-
entity balances, transactions, revenue and expenses between entities within the 
economic entity are eliminated in full (whichever is earlier).  

44C Where a first-time adopter has taken advantage of the transitional exemption in 
paragraph 44B to not recognize its interests in controlled entities within a period of 
three years, it shall not present consolidated financial statements until the exemptions 
that provided the relief have expired and/or its interests in controlled entities, are 
identified and appropriately classified (whichever is earlier). 

75. Staff is also of the view that similar exemptions should be included for IPSAS 7 and IPSAS 8. 

Action Requested: 

20. Members are asked to indicate:  

(a) whether they agree with the staff proposal to provide relief to not prepare consolidated 
financial statements where a first-time adopter has taken advantage of the exemption 
to not eliminate inter-entity transactions and balances and identify and classify its 
interests controlled entities;  

(b) if yes, whether they agree with the wording as proposed in paragraph 74; and 

(c) whether similar relief to should be included for interests in associates and joint 
ventures. 

Measurement alternatives for interests in investments  

76. Respondent R10 commented that paragraph 73 indicates that where an entity elects to measure its 
investment in a controlled entity, joint ventures or associate at cost in its separate financial 
statements, it can determine “cost” using the guidance in IPSAS 6 (which is based on the purchase 
cost of the investment). As an alternative, cost can be determined by determining a deemed cost 
based on fair value as described in IPSAS 29.  

77. The respondent indicated that on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSASs, the first-time adopter 
may not have reliable cost information about the amount paid for the investments in controlled 
entities, jointly controlled entities and associates, and reliable market-based evidence of fair value 
may not be available to determine deemed cost. The respondent proposed that net asset value 
should be considered as a measurement alternative in the proposed IPSAS to determine a deemed 
cost for a first-time adopter’s interests in other entities in the absence of reliable cost information.  

78. Staff notes the comment, but are of the view that even though it may be appropriate practically, 
there is no basis to use net asset value in IPSASs. As such, no amendment is proposed.  

Action Requested: 

21. Members are asked to indicate whether they support the staff proposal to not include a 
measurement alternative in determining a deemed cost for a first-time adopter’s interest in 
controlled entities, associates or jointly controlled entities.  
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Related party disclosures 

79. Respondent R10 questioned the three year relief period allowed for the disclosure of information 
about key management. The respondent noted that information about the remuneration of, and 
loans granted to, key management personnel should be available to a first-time adopter, 
irrespective of its previously applied basis of accounting. 

80. Staff supports the proposal to limit the transitional exemptions and provisions to the disclosure of 
related party relationships and related party transactions only. The following amendments to 
paragraphs 59 and 60 are proposed: 

59. A first-time adopter is not required to disclose related party relationships and, related 
party transactions and information about key management personnel for reporting 
periods beginning on a date within three years following the date of adoption of 
IPSASs. 

60. Notwithstanding the transitional provision in paragraph 59, a first-time adopter is 
encouraged to disclose information about related party relationships and, related party 
transactions and information about key management personnel that are is known at 
the date of adoption of IPSAS. 

81. Staff further proposes to include an explanation in the Implementation guidance to illustrate that the 
exemption only applies to related party relationships and related party transactions. 

Action Requested: 

22. Members are asked to indicate whether they support the staff proposal to: 

(a) limit the transitional relief only to the disclosures of related party relationships and related 
party transactions;  

(b) if yes, whether they support the amendments to paragraphs 59 and 60 as proposed in 
paragraph 80; and 

(c) if yes, whether they support the inclusion of an explanation in the Implementation 
guidance. 

Comparative information 

82. Two respondents (R4 and R10) commented on the presentation of comparative information in 
relation to the requirements in paragraph 7 and 15. The respondents noted that, if a first-time 
adopter elects to include non-IPSAS comparative information in its first set of transitional financial 
statements, the requirement in paragraph 15 would effectively require it to amend its non-IPSAS 
comparative information to be IPSAS compliant. These respondents proposed that the ED should 
clarify that the requirements in the proposed IPSAS only applies to information prepared in 
accordance with this IPSAS.  

83. Staff supports the proposal to clarify that this IPSAS will not apply to non-IPSAS comparative 
information. Staff proposes that the following paragraph should be included after paragraph 3 in 
clarifying the scope: 

“3A   This Standard only applies to information prepared and presented using accrual basis 
IPSASs after the date of adoption. For example, if a first-time adopter elects not to 
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provide comparative information in accordance with paragraph 75, but presents non-
IPSAS comparative information, the transitional exemptions and provisions provided in 
this Standard should not be applied to the non-IPSAS financial statements.”    

Action Requested: 

23. Members are asked to indicate whether they support the staff proposal to: 

(a) clarify that this ED only applies to information prepared in accordance with this IPSAS; 
and 

(b) if yes, whether they support the proposed wording in paragraph 83. 

84. Respondent R7 also questioned whether comparative information should be presented for every 
line item, given the exemption in the ED not to present comparative information. The respondent 
proposed that this should be clarified in the final pronouncement.  

85. Staff agrees that clarification is needed in this regard, and propose that paragraph 75 should be 
amended as follows: 

75. A first-time adopter is encouraged, but not required, to present comparative 
information in its transitional IPSAS financial statements or its first IPSAS financial 
statements presented in accordance with this IPSAS. If a first-time adopter presents 
comparative information, it should be presented in accordance with the requirements 
in IPSAS 1. 

Action Requested: 

24. Members are asked to indicate whether they support the staff proposal to: 

(a) clarify that when comparative information is presented, it should be done in accordance 
with the requirements in IPSAS 1; and  

(b) if yes, whether they support the proposed wording in paragraph 85. 

Requirement to present one or two statements of financial position, two statements of financial 
performance, two statements of changes in net assets and two statements of cash flow statements 

86. Respondent R10 commented on the requirements in paragraphs 76 and 77 to either present one, 
or two statements of financial position, two statements of financial performance, two statements of 
changes in net assets and two statements of cash flow statements. The respondent noted that, in 
requiring a first-time adopter to present “two statements” it could be understood that a first-time 
adopter should prepare two separate sets of financial statements. The respondent proposed that 
these paragraphs should be clarified to avoid inconsistent application.  

87. Staff supports the proposal that clarification is needed in paragraph 76 to explain that one set of 
financial statements needs to be prepared, with an additional requirement that comparative 
information from the preceding period should be presented as part of the statements where a first-
time adopter has elected to present comparative information. Staff proposes the following 
amendment to paragraph 76: 

Agenda Item 6.1 
18 



Issues Paper 
IPSASB Meeting (June 2014) 

76. Where a first-time adopter elects to present comparative information, the transitional 
IPSAS financial statements or the first IPSAS financial statements presented in 
accordance with this IPSAS shall include: 

(a) One Two statements of financial position with comparative information for the 
preceding period, and an opening statement of financial position as at the 
beginning of the reporting period prior to the date of adoption of accrual basis 
IPSAS; 

(b) One Two statements of financial performance with comparative information for 
the preceding period;  

(c) One Two statements of changes in net assets/equity with comparative 
information for the preceding period; 

(d) One Two cash flow statements with comparative information for the preceding 
period; 

(e) A comparison of budget and actual amounts for the current year as a separate 
additional financial statement or as a budget column in the financial 
statements if the first-time adopter makes its approved budget publicly 
available; and  

(f) Related notes including comparative information, and the disclosure of 
narrative information about material adjustments as required by paragraph 
130. 

Action Requested: 

25. Members are asked to indicate whether they support the staff proposal to: 

(a) clarify the requirements in paragraph 76 in relation to the presentation of comparative 
information; and  

(b) if yes, whether they support the proposed wording in paragraph 87. 

Classification of existing finance and operating leases 

88. Respondent R10 highlighted that paragraph 94 requires a first-time adopter to classify all existing 
leases as operating or finance leases based on circumstances that existed at the inception of the 
lease. It noted that the lessee and the lessor may have agreed to change the provisions of the 
lease (other than renewing the lease) at any time between the date of the lease inception and the 
date of adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. These amendments could impact the classification of the 
lease as at the date of adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. 

89. The respondent proposed that paragraph 94 should be clarified to explain that, to the extent that 
the lessor agreed to change the provisions of the lease (other than renewing the lease) at any time 
between the date of inception of the lease and the date of adoption of accrual basis IPSASs in a 
manner that would have resulted in a different classification of the lease at the date of adoption, the 
revised agreement should be regarded as a new agreement. The new provisions of the lease 
agreement should thus be considered at the date of adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. 
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90. Staff supports this proposal and proposes that the following additional paragraph be included after 
paragraph 94: 

“94A If, however, the lessee and the lessor have agreed to change the provisions of the 
lease between the date of inception of the lease and the date of adoption of accrual 
basis IPSASs in a manner that would have resulted in a different classification of the 
lease at the date of adoption, the revised agreement should be regarded as a new 
agreement. The first-time adopter shall then consider the new provisions of the lease 
agreement at the date of adoption of accrual basis IPSASs in classifying the lease as 
an operating or finance lease.  

Action Requested: 

26. Members are asked to indicate whether they support the staff proposal to: 

(a) clarify that if the lessee and the lessor changed the provisions of the lease between the 
date of inception of the lease and the date of adoption of accrual basis IPSASs, these 
amendments should be taken into accounting in classifying the lease at the date of 
adoption of accrual basis IPSASs; and  

(b) if yes, whether they support the proposed wording in paragraph 90.   

Recognition of internally generated intangible assets  

91. Three respondents (R4, R7 and R10) questioned the requirement in paragraph 123 that allows a 
first-time adopter to recognise and/or measure an internally generated intangible asset if it meets 
the definition and recognition criteria in IPSAS 31, even though it has, under its previous basis of 
accounting, expensed such costs. R7 also questioned the requirement that deemed cost may not 
be determined for an internally generated intangible asset. 

92. The respondents commented that, by implication the paragraph requires a first-time adopter to 
have the historical cost information available if the transitional exemption is to be applied. If a first-
time adopter wants to recognise previously expensed internally generated intangible assets, it will 
therefore be required to apply hindsight in determining a value for the internally generated 
intangible asset. The respondents recommended that the requirement in paragraph 123 should be 
deleted, as paragraph 18 already requires that a first-time adopter should recognize all assets and 
liabilities whose recognition is required by IPSASs.  

93. Staff supports the proposal to delete paragraph 123, on the basis that the requirements in 
paragraph 18 is sufficient.  

Action Requested: 

27. Members are asked to indicate whether they support the staff proposal to delete the principle 
paragraph 123.   

Disclosure of the elimination of balances, transactions, revenue and expenses in preparing consolidated 
financial statements 

94. Respondent R23 proposed that the disclosure requirement in paragraph 126(c) should be amended 
to rather require the disclosure of balances, transactions, revenue and expenses that are not 
eliminated where the first-time adopter has taken advantage of the transitional exemption to not 
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eliminate these in preparing consolidated financial statements. The respondent argued that this 
amendment will provide more relevant and useful information to the users if the financial statements 
explained the nature of those balances, transactions, revenue and expenses that have not been 
eliminated.  

95. Staff notes the comment, and proposes that, to the extent that information is available, a first-time 
adopter should be required to disclose the nature of the balances, transactions, revenue and 
expenses that have not been eliminated during the reporting period. Staff proposes the inclusion of 
the following additional disclosure in paragraph 126:  

“126(c)  Where it has taken advantage of the transitional exemption not to eliminate some   
balances, transactions, revenue and expenses, the nature of the balances, 
transactions, revenue and expenses that have not been eliminated during the 
reporting period; 

126(cA) Where it has taken advantage of the transitional exemption not to eliminate some 
balances, transactions, revenue and expenses, the nature of the balances, 
transactions, revenue and expenses that have not been eliminated during the 
reporting period to the extent that information is available; 

Action Requested: 

28. Members are asked to indicate whether they support the staff proposal to request the 
disclosure of balances, transactions, revenue and expenses that have not been eliminated, as 
proposed in paragraph 95.   

Presenting a cash flow statement during the period of transition 

96. Two respondents (R6 and R11) questioned the preparation of the cash flow statement during the 
period of transition. These respondents noted that no transitional exemptions and provisions are 
provided for the preparation of the cash flow statement where a first-time adopter elects to adopt a 
three year relief period for the recognition and/or measurement of certain assets and/or liabilities. 
They noted that it does not seem practical to present a cash flow statement compliant with IPSASs 
when the statement of financial position is not in itself compliant, specifically taking into account the 
classification of flows between operating, investing and financing activities.  

97. These respondents proposed that some flexibility should be provided during the transition period to 
appropriately present the cash flow statement.  

98. In its meeting held in December 2012 the IPSASB agreed not to provide any transitional 
exemptions and provisions for cash flow statements. This decision was based on the fact that users 
still need cash flow information on (a) the sources of cash inflows, (b) the items on which cash was 
expensed during the reporting period and (c) the cash balance as at the end of the reporting period, 
even though the financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis.   

Action Requested: 

29. Members are asked to confirm whether it supports its previous decision to not provide any 
relief from the preparation of the cash flow statement, irrespective of whether a first-time 
adopter has elected to adopt the three year relief period provided for the recognition and/or 
measurement of certain assets and/or liabilities.  
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Implementation Guidance 

99. A few respondents requested additional implementation guidance in the final pronouncement. Of 
these suggestions, staff is of the view that the following could assist entities in understanding the 
provisions of the proposed IPSAS: 

• an example illustrating how a first-time adopter should present its first transitional IPSAS 
financial statements or its first IPSAS financial statements. The example should specifically 
illustrate how the opening statement of financial position should be presented; and 

• an illustration of wording that should be used when preparing accounting policies to explain 
the basis used to prepare the financial statements.  

Action Requested: 

30. Members are asked to confirm whether they support the staff proposal to include the 
following illustrative examples in the Implementation Guidance: 

i. the opening statement of financial position in the first transitional IPSAS financial 
statements or first IPSAS financial statements; and  

ii. the basis used to prepare the financial statements.   

Impact of the proposed IPSAS on Study 14  

100. Respondent R10 proposed that explanatory guidance should be provided on how the development 
of this proposed pronouncement impacts Study 14 Transition to the Accrual Basis of Accounting: 
Guidance for Governments and Government Entities. The respondent also noted that it should be 
highlighted in Study 14 that first-time adopters should plan and prepare well in advance for the 
adoption of accrual basis IPSASs.   

101. Staff is, however, of the view that other recent pronouncements developed may also impact Study 
14, and therefore propose that the IPSASB should consider a more general project to review and 
update Study 14 with all recent developments. 

Action Requested: 

31. Members are asked to confirm whether it supports the staff proposal that a review of Study 
14 should be undertaken in updating it with all recent pronouncements issued.  
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Appendix A 
Differentiation between voluntarily and mandatory transitional exemptions and provisions  

Following the proposal in paragraph 20, the transitional exemptions and provisions include in ED 53 First-time Adoption of Accrual Basis IPSASs2 
will be reclassified as follows: 

Transitional exemption or provision Mandatory transitional 
exemptions or provisions 

Voluntary transitional 
exemptions or provisions 

Relief for the recognition and/or measurement of assets and/or liabilities 

• IPSAS 16 – investment property 

• IPSAS 17 – property, plant and equipment 

• IPSAS 25 – defined benefit plans and other long-term liabilities  

• IPSAS 27 – biological assets and agricultural produce 

• IPSAS 31 – intangible assets 

• IPSAS 29 –financial instruments  

• IPSAS 32 – service concession assets and liabilities  

  

√ 

√ 

√ 

√ 

√ 

√ 

√ 

Relief to recognize obligation from defined benefit plan and other long-term 
employee benefits at the same time as related plan assets  

 √ 

Relief from changing accounting policy to measure assets and liabilities where 
three year relief from recognition and/or measurement was elected 

 √ 

Relief from recognition and/or measurement of related revenue in terms of IPSAS 
9 and IPSAS 32 where three year relief from recognition and/or measurement of 
financial instruments was elected 

  

√ 

2 Proposed amendments and additional transitional exemptions and provisions proposed are not included in the categorization 
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Transitional exemption or provision Mandatory transitional 
exemptions or provisions 

Voluntary transitional 
exemptions or provisions 

Relief for the recognition and/or measurement of non-exchange revenue – IPSAS 
23 

 √ 

Relief from changing accounting policy to measure non-exchange revenue where 
three year relief from recognition and/or measurement was elected 

 √ 

Applying deemed cost to assets  √ 

Preparing reconciliations during transitional period √  

IPSAS 1 

• Present comparative information 

  

√ 

IPSAS 4 

• Cumulative transitional differences at the date of adoption 

  

√ 

IPSAS 5 

• Allowed alternative treatment and has taken advantage of relief period 

  

√ 

• Adopt allowed alternative treatment on date of adoption – retrospective 
application 

√  

• Adopt bench mark treatment on the date of adoption – retrospective application   √ 

IPSAS 6 

• Eliminate inter-entity balances, transactions, revenue and expenses  

  

√ 

IPSAS 6 

• Controlled entity becomes first-time adopter later or earlier than its controlling 
entity 

 

√ 
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Transitional exemption or provision Mandatory transitional 
exemptions or provisions 

Voluntary transitional 
exemptions or provisions 

IPSAS 7 

• Eliminate share in associate’s surplus and deficit 

  

√ 

IPSAS 8 

• Eliminate balances and transactions with jointly controlled entities 

  

√ 

IPSAS 10 

• Determine if hyperinflationary economy is subject to severe hyperinflation at the 
date of adoption 

 

√ 

 

• Measure assets and liabilities if date of adoption is on or after normalisation 
date  

  

IPSAS 13 

• No measurement of finance lease liability and finance lease asset if relief period 
for recognition and/or measurement of assets are adopted 

• Classification of lease based on circumstances at adoption of accrual basis 
IPSAS 

 

 

 

√ 

 

√ 

IPSAS 18 

• No preparation of segment report within three years of adoption 

  

√ 

IPSAS 19 

• No recognition and measurement of liability relating to initial estimate of costs of 
dismantling and removing item if relief for recognition and/or measurement of 
asset is adopted 

  

 

√ 
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Transitional exemption or provision Mandatory transitional 
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Voluntary transitional 
exemptions or provisions 

IPSAS 20 

• No disclosure of related party relationships, related party  transactions and 
information about key management personnel  

  

√ 

IPSAS 21 

• Apply impairment provisions prospectively on date of adoption or when 
assets are recognised when relief period was applied 

 

√ 

 

IPSAS 25 

• Determine initial liability for defined benefit and other long-term employee 
benefit plans on date of adoption or when relief period expired 

• Recognize increase/decrease on date of adoption or when relief period 
expired in opening accumulated surplus/deficit 

 

√ 

 

√ 

 

IPSAS 26 

• Apply impairment provisions prospectively on date of adoption or when 
assets are recognised when relief period was applied 

 

 

√ 

 

IPSAS 28 

• Determine if financial instrument has liability and net asset/equity component 
on date of adoption 

• Don’t separate compound financial instrument if no liability exists on date of 
adoption 

 

√ 

 

√ 
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Transitional exemption or provision Mandatory transitional 
exemptions or provisions 

Voluntary transitional 
exemptions or provisions 

IPSAS 29 

Designation 

• Designate financial asset or liability at fair value through surplus or deficit on 
date of adoption 

Impairment 

• Apply impairment provisions prospectively on date of adoption 

 

 

 

 

 

√ 

 

 

√ 

 

IPSAS 29 

Derecognition 

• Apply derecognition provisions prospectively on date of adoption 

• Apply derecognition provisions retrospectively if information are available 
as at the date of initially accounting 

 

 

√ 

 

 

 

√ 

Hedge accounting 

• Measure derivatives at fair value  

• Eliminate all deferred losses and gains  

• Only reflect hedges that qualifies for hedge accounting on date of 
adoption 

• Discontinued hedge transaction if not meeting conditions of hedge 
accounting on date of adoption 

 

√ 

√ 

√ 

 

√ 

 

 

IPSAS 30 

• No disclosure of information about nature and extent of risks  

  

√ 
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Transitional exemption or provision Mandatory transitional 
exemptions or provisions 

Voluntary transitional 
exemptions or provisions 

IPSAS 31 

• Recognize all internally generated intangible assets 

 

√ 

 

IPSAS 32 

• Measure liability either under financial liability model or grant of a right to 
the operator model on date of adoption or when asset is recognised if 
relief period is adopted 

 

√ 
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List of Respondents: 

Response 
# 

Respondent Name Country Function 

001 Jabatan Akauntan Negara Malaysia Negeri Sabah Accrual Committee Malaysia Other 

002 The International Consortium on Governmental Financial Management (ICGF) USA Other 

003 Adbu Dhabi Accountability Authority 
United Arab 
Emirates 

Audit Office 

004 Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB, from staff) Canada Standard setter/Standards Advisory Board 

005 New Zealand Accounting Standards Board (XRB) New Zealand Standard setter/Standards Advisory Board 

006 Conseil de Normalisation des Comptes Publics (CNOCP) France Standard setter/Standards Advisory Board 

007 Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) Australia Standard setter/Standards Advisory Board 

008 Brazilian Federal Accounting Council Brazil Other 

009 Swiss Public Sector Financial Reporting Advisory Commitee (SRS-CSPCP) Switzerland Standard setter/Standards Advisory Board 

010 Secretriat of the Accounting Standards Board South Africa South Africa Standard setter/Standards Advisory Board 

011 Direction Generale des Finances Publiques (DGFiP) France Preparer 

012 
Financial Management Standards Board (FMSB) of the Association of Government 
Accountants (AGA) 

USA Preparer 

013 The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nigeria (ICAN) Nigeria Member or Regional Body 

014 Institute of Certified Public Accountants of Kenya (ICPAK) Kenya Member or Regional Body 

015 KPMG IFRG Limited International  Accountancy Firm 

016 The Institute of Chartered Accountants (Ghana) Ghana Member or Regional Body 

017 The Japanese Institute of Certified Public Accountants (JICPA) Japan Member or Regional Body 

018 Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) International Member or Regional Body 

019 Zambia Institute of Chartered Accountants Zambia Member or Regional Body 

020 Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) UK Member or Regional Body 
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Response 
# 

Respondent Name Country Function 

021 Cour des Comptes France Audit Office 

022 Federation des Experts Comptables Europeens (FEE) International Member or Regional Body 

023 Malaysian Institute of Accountants (MIA) Malaysia Member or Regional Body 

024 Denise Silva Ferreira Juvenal Brazil Other 

025 Respondent 251 Hong Kong Preparer 

  

1 The respondent requested that comment provided should not be made publicly available 
Agenda Item 6.3 
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General Comments on the ED: 

R# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

GENERAL COMMENTS 
STAFF COMMENTS 

001 No general comments   

002 We are pleased that the IPSASB is establishing a standard to recognize and measure the financial statement elements upon 
adoption of the IPSAS. However, we are disappointed that the standard only applies to the accrual IPSAS and does not 
recognize the Cash Basis IPSAS. 

We believe that the following should have been emphasized to lay the foundation for the discussion in the ED: 

a. Many countries implement Part 1 of the Cash Basis IPSAS until they develop their capacity to transition to the accrual IPSAS.  
As such, they prepare the two required financial statements (Budget to Actual Comparative Statement and Cash 
Receipts/Cash Payments Statement). As they transition to the accrual IPSAS, many countries will implement the options in 
Part 2 of the Cash Basis IPSAS. 

b. The Cash Basis IPSAS is recognized as Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) by those countries that have fully 
implemented Part 1. Thus, the Supreme Audit Office performs their financial audits of the financial statements in order to 
express an opinion on fair presentation. Yet, these audited financial statements are not separately recognized for inclusion in 
the opening or comparative statements. 

Support for  development 
of ED noted.  

Paragraph 12.(a) of the ED 
acknowledges that a first-
time adopter may 
transition from the cash 
basis of accounting. A first-
time adopter may decide 
to present comparative 
information which could 
comprise the information 
presented under the cash 
basis of accounting.  

003 We are fully supportive of the IPSASB’s objectives to enhance the quality and consistency of financial reporting of Public Sector 
Entities (PSEs) and improve the transparency and accountability of government reporting. 

Support for development 
of ED noted.  

004 No general comments  

005 The NZASB is pleased the IPSASB has developed ED 53 to provide guidance to entities adopting accrual basis IPSASs.  

The NZASB is broadly supportive of the proposals in the ED, including the three year transitional relief period for the recognition 
and measurement of certain items especially for entities that were previously applying cash accounting. We would prefer that the 
period be limited to one or two years so that entities’ financial statements will be fairly presented with complete and useful 
information at an earlier date. However, we understand that the IPSASB is trying to encourage the adoption of IPSASs and 
considers that these broad based relief provisions will assist in this goal.   

Support for  development 
of ED noted. 

Three year transitional 
period was raised as a 
matter for consideration to 
be discussed by the 
IPSASB.  

006 The Council has reservations as to the definition of a period of transition from the date of adoption of IPSASs as well as to the 
temporary exemptions during that period of transition. The Council is of the view that temporary transition exemptions should not 
fall within the remit of the IPSAS Board. 

The Council actually strongly believes that only those elements that ensure compliance of an entity’s financial statements to 

Noted. Staff is, however, of 
the view that transitional 
exemptions and provisions 
should be included in a 
single pronouncement 
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R# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

GENERAL COMMENTS 
STAFF COMMENTS 

IPSASs are for the IPSAS Board to decide. An entity is required to make an unreserved statement of compliance to IPSASs 
when it reaches the point where only those exemptions that do not affect fair presentation and compliance to IPSASs are used. 
How the entity came to that point and how long it took should not call into question its financial statements’ compliance to 
IPSASs. 

This is why the Council suggests, on the basis of the distinction in the ED between the two types of exemptions, that those 
exemptions that affect fair presentation and compliance to IPSASs should be turned into simple recommendations during the 
transition period, eg as Recommended Practice Guideline. 

In the context of the adoption of a new set of accounting standards, the Council acknowledges the need to allow flexibility in first 
time application requirements. As such, regrouping in one standard first time application requirements, currently spread through 
the standards, should ease the implementation. The Council thus welcomes the principle of simplification of the transition towards 
IPSASs compared to a full retrospective application. 

The Council suggests, on the basis of the distinction in the ED between the two types of exemptions, that those exemptions that 
affect fair presentation and compliance to IPSASs should be turned into simple recommendations during the transition period, eg 
as Recommended Practice Guideline. 

because preparers will get 
a better understanding of 
the impact that the 
transition to accrual 
accounting will have on 
their financial statements 
during the period of 
transition. If a RPG is 
developed, preparers will 
be allowed to do whatever 
they want during the 
transition to accrual 
accounting, which will 
impair the credibility of the 
financial statements during 
the period of transition. By 
separating the exemptions 
that do not affect fair 
presentation and 
compliance from those that 
do, staff is of the view that 
the remaining principles in 
the IPSASs will not 
comprise a comprehensive 
set of principles.  

007 Overall, the AASB is generally supportive of the proposals in the ED.   Support for development 
of ED noted.  

008 No general comments  

009 This ED is no longer of imminent practical relevance in Switzerland. Accrual accounting has been introduced on all levels of 
government. The financial reporting of the federal level, as well as of several states/cantons is based on IPSAS. The other 
states/cantons and the municipalities are using the so-called Harmonized Accounting Model (HAM), which is currently rolled out 
in its second updated release. If an entity which is currently under HAM was adopting IPSAS for a first time, the technical issues 
would be rather limited. If some Swiss entities don’t adopt IPSAS’s it is not for technical reasons. However, we acknowledge that 
for entities implementing accrual accounting for a first time, the proposed standard is highly relevant. 

Support for  development 
of ED noted.  
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R# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

GENERAL COMMENTS 
STAFF COMMENTS 

010 Overall, we support the development of the Exposure Draft as we believe that it provides a comprehensive set of principles to be 
used by entities on the adoption of the accrual basis IPSASs.  

Even though some of our stakeholders indicated that more detailed practical guidance may have been helpful, we acknowledge 
that the development of such guidance is outside the scope of this project from the IPSASB’s perspective. 

Support for  development 
of ED noted.  

011 The “Direction générale des finances publiques” (The French Directorate of Public Finances), or “DGFIP”, considers that the 
issues of IPSAS first time adoption are major for public entities. And reflections should be conducted on this topic, emphasizing 
flexibility and pragmatism, and taking into account the specificities of the public sector. 

During the transition period, the entity adopts a mixed accounting basis which is no longer its previous accounting basis but not 
yet IPSAS-compliant. For this reason, transitional exemptions affecting fair presentation and compliance with IPSASs cannot take 
the form of a standard. 

The relief provisions mentioned in the Exposure Draft are of two kinds: 

• Transitional exemptions affecting fair presentation and compliance with IPSASs 

• Transitional exemptions not affecting fair presentation and compliance with IPSASs 

DGFiP believes the distinction between the two types of exemption is all the more necessary because only exemptions not 
affecting fair presentation and compliance with IPSASs would have potential standard status. 

Support for development 
of ED noted. 

Noted. Staff is, however, of 
the view that transitional 
exemptions and provisions 
should be included in a 
single pronouncement 
because preparers will get 
a better understanding of 
the impact that the 
transition to accrual 
accounting will have on 
their financial statements 
during the period of 
transition. If a RPG is 
developed, preparers will 
be allowed to do whatever 
they want during the 
transition to accrual 
accounting, which will 
impair the credibility of the 
financial statements during 
the period of transition. By 
separating the exemptions 
that do not affect fair 
presentation and 
compliance from those that 
do, staff is of the view that 
the remaining principles in 
the IPSASs will not 
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R# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

GENERAL COMMENTS 
STAFF COMMENTS 

comprise a comprehensive 
set of principles.  

012 The FMSB agrees with the IPSASB’s conclusion that the first time adoption of the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with 
the IPSASB standards is a complex process that requires consideration of the cost/benefits of such a transition as well as 
adequate time to fully implement the IPSASB’s standards. The FMSB agrees with the position of the ED that requires an entity to 
comply with each effective IPSAS on the date of adoption, but allows some limited exemptions from requirements in certain areas 
where the cost of complying would be likely to exceed the benefits to users of financial statements. This provision should allow 
entities considering the change to the accrual basis of accounting to make reasonable judgments during the transition process 
that both will ease the transition and allow the entity to realize the full benefits of accrual accounting in the future. We believe the 
three year transition period is necessary and reasonable. We also support the provision that allows an entity the option to 
implement some changes at an earlier stage, when appropriate. 

Support for development 
of ED noted.  

013 The Institute is particularly pleased to note the increased attention by the International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board 
(IPSASB) being paid to development of more transparent and wider acceptable accounting standards for the public sector, 
particularly at this time when concerns are growing for a more robust system and standards of accounting in the public sector 
across the world. 

Noted.  

014 The Institute believes that the proposed stand alone standard on First-Time Adoption of Accrual basis provides a single reference 
to transitional provisions currently contained in various standards hence harmonising transition process.  

Support for development 
of ED noted.  

015 While we generally are supportive of the draft. Support for development 
of ED noted.  

016 No general comments.  

017 No general comments.  

018 Overall, we are highly supportive of the work of the IPSASB and developments in international public sector accounting 
standards. We believe that the proposed standard for first time adoption of accruals basis international public sector accounts is a 
positive step in helping public bodies at the national, regional and local levels to make the transition to IPSAS accruals based 
accounts. We believe it provides a practical way forward and strips out some of the complexities in the first years of transition, 
whilst at the same time helping public bodies to prepare accounts based on good quality information.  

Support for development 
of ED noted.  

019 No general comments.  
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R# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

GENERAL COMMENTS 
STAFF COMMENTS 

020 As noted in successive responses, CIPFA strongly supports IPSASB’s development of high quality standards for public sector 
financial reporting, whether through the Board’s project to develop and maintain IFRS converged IPSASs or through wholly public 
sector specific IPSASs.  

The proposals in this ED IPSAS have the effect of filling an apparent gap in the IPSAS canon by providing a counterpart to IFRS 
1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, and respond to the demand for such a standard which was 
evidenced by responses to the IPSASB consultation on its workplan.  

CIPFA generally supports the proposals which helpfully bring together and rationalise first time adoption approaches which are 
currently spread across multiple IPSASs. CIPFA agrees with each of the approaches relating to individual IPSAS standards. 

The ED IPSAS also extends the circumstances under which entities can formally signal their intention to adopt IPSAS, by 
providing an intermediate category of ‘transitional IPSAS financial statements’. The ED IPSAS proposes that these statements 
can be prepared for a limited three year transition, and during that time can take additional exemptions to facilitate an orderly 
progression of fully compliant ‘first IPSAS financial statements’. CIPFA supports this approach. 

Noted.  

 

 

Support for development 
of ED noted.  

021 In conclusion, the Cour des Compts regrets that the IPSASB Board did not take more fully into account the feedback available 
from entities that have successfully moved towards IPSAS in the previous years. The risk that some entities could differ their 
transition to IPSAS is real, if they are to expect qualified opinions form their external auditors due to exemptions impacting fair 
presentation. The Cour would have rather welcomed a draft RPG, listing and supporting available practice collected from 
successful experiences that were concluded by unqualified opinions from external auditors.  

Noted. A number of 
surveys and reports have 
been published on the 
IFAC website on 
experiences in the move to 
accrual accounting, such 
as the publication by the 
United States of America 
on the Road to Accrual 
Accounting (see 
www.ifac.org/publications-
resources). 

022 We strongly support IPSASB’s programme which helpfully combines IFRS converged IPSASs on matters which are common 
to both private and public sectors, public sector specific IPSASs on matters which are unique to the sector, and conceptual work 
which will inform the development of standards in future, seeking to achieve the optimum balance between maintaining 
comparability and addressing sector specific issues. 

Support for development 
of ED noted.  

023 We generally support the proposals in the ED. As the government of Malaysia is moving towards accrual basis accounting in 
2015, we find that the exemptions proposed in the ED are useful and would ease the transition from cash to accrual basis 
accounting.  

Support for development 
of ED noted.  
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R# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

GENERAL COMMENTS 
STAFF COMMENTS 

024 No general comments   

025 We appreciate the effort of the Board in providing a comprehensive coverage, in a single IPSAS, of all exemptions applicable 
during entities’ transition to accrual basis IPSASs. 

Support for development 
of ED noted.  
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Specific Matter for Comment (SMC) 1:  

The objective of this Exposure Draft is to provide a comprehensive set of principles that provides relief to entities that adopt accrual basis IPSASs 
for the first time.  

(a) Do you agree with the proposed transitional exemptions included in the Exposure Draft; and  

(b) Do you believe that the IPSASB achieved its goal in providing appropriate relief to a first-time adopter in transitioning to accrual basis 
IPSASs? 

Please provide a reason for your response. 

Summary of responses to Specific Matter for Comment (SMC) 1(a): 

STAFF ASSESSMENT OF RESPONSES RECEIVED: These are staff views and do not necessarily reflect the views of IPSASB Members 

CATEGORY (C #) RESPONDENTS (R #) TOTAL 

A – AGREE 002, 003, 009, 012, 013, 014, 016, 017, 018, 019, 020, 022, 024 13 

B – PARTIALLY AGREE  004 , 005, 007, 008, 010, 015, 021, 023 8 

C – DISAGREE 006, 011 2 

SUB-TOTAL OF THOSE PROVIDING COMMENTS   

D – DID NOT COMMENT 001, 025 2 

TOTAL RESPONDENTS   

 

R# C# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 1(a) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

001 D No comment on SMC1(a).   

002 A Agree.   Noted.  

003 A We agree with the proposed transitional exemptions. Noted.  

004 B The stated objective of this standard is to ensure that an entity’s first annual financial statements prepared using 
accrual basis IPSASs contain high quality information. Financial information that is relevant, faithfully represented, 

Agreed. The objective of 
developing this ED was to 
provide a comprehensive set 
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R# C# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 1(a) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

understandable, timely, comparable and verifiable. It is presumed that an objective of the IPSASB in developing this 
first-time standard was to make the adoption of accrual basis IPSASs less onerous for public sector entities. 

of principles to entities that 
want to adopt accrual basis 
IPSASs, while at the same 
time provide appropriate relief 
to assist them with their 
adoption.   

005 B We agree with the proposed transitional exemptions that the IPSASB considers would not affect the fair 
presentation of a first-time adopter’s financial statements. We query the usefulness of publishing incomplete 
financial statements and have concerns about the impact of the exemptions that affect fair presentation and 
compliance on the public’s perception of the quality of IPSASs.  

Noted. Concerns on 
exemptions affecting fair 
presentation is addressed in 
the response to SMC2.  

006 C The Council has reservations as to the definition of a period of transition from the date of adoption of IPSASs as well 
as to the temporary exemptions during that period of transition. The Council is of the view that temporary transition 
exemptions should not fall within the remit of the IPSAS Board. 

The Council actually strongly believes that only those elements that ensure compliance of an entity’s financial 
statements to IPSASs are for the IPSAS Board to decide. An entity is required to make an unreserved statement of 
compliance to IPSASs when it reaches the point where only those exemptions that do not affect fair presentation 
and compliance to IPSASs are used. How the entity came to that point and how long it took should not call into 
question its financial statements’ compliance to IPSASs. 

This is why the Council suggests, on the basis of the distinction in the ED between the two types of exemptions, that 
those exemptions that affect fair presentation and compliance to IPSASs should be turned into simple 
recommendations during the transition period, eg as Recommended Practice Guideline. 

The Council agrees on the principle of setting exemptions to ease transition as described in the ED. However, the 
Council is of the view that the list of temporary exemptions and the length of the transition period are insufficient to 
fully achieve the set goal to provide appropriate relief. 

As shown in the Council’s responses to questions 1 and 2, the Council does not approve of the authoritative nature 
of those exemptions that affect fair presentation and compliance with IPSASs during the transition period. 

The Council is of the view that setting the requirements during the transition period to IPSASs does not fall within 
the IPSAS Board’s remit, when, at the end of the transition period, all IPSASs are being fully applied and only those 
exemptions that do not affect fair presentation and compliance to IPSASs remain. 

The Council is well aware that its suggestion, as detailed in the response to question 1 above, might entail the need 
to adjust the date of adoption definition and could call for the introduction of a date of transition. 

Noted. Concerns on the three 
year relief period is addressed 
in the response to SMC3.  

The comment on the 
temporary transitional 
exemptions that should not be 
part of the proposed IPSAS 
was dealt with in the response 
to the general comment.  
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R# C# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 1(a) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

007 B The AASB generally agrees with the transitional exemptions proposed.  We recognise that one of the greatest 
hurdles to adopting an accrual basis accounting framework is the recognition and measurement of assets and 
liabilities.  Therefore, to attract more jurisdictions to adopt accrual IPSASs or move from Cash Basis IPSAS – 
Financial Reporting Under the Cash Basis of Accounting, the AASB acknowledges that concessions need to be 
made. 

Noted. Comments on 
amendments proposed to the  
transitional exemptions are 
addressed in the response to 
comments on specific 
principles included in the ED. 

 

 

008 B We partially agree.  

 

Noted. Comments on 
amendments proposed to the  
transitional exemptions are 
addressed in the response to 
comments on specific 
principles included in the ED. 

009 A The SRS-CSPCP agrees with the proposed exemptions. They are permitted for captions, which experience shows 
to be time consuming to prepare. 

Noted.  

010 B We agree with the proposed transitional exemptions included in the Exposure Draft as they provide a 
comprehensive set of principles that will assist entities with the adoption of the accrual basis IPSASs. We do, 
however, have specific comments on these transitional exemptions and other principles proposed in this Exposure 
Draft. These comments are included in Part II of our response. 

Noted. Comments on 
amendments proposed to the  
transitional exemptions are 
addressed in the response to 
comments on specific 
principles included in the ED. 

011 C DGFiP believes a distinction should be made between exemptions that affect fair presentation and compliance with 
IPSASs and those that do not. Moreover, in DGFiP’s view, the exemptions affecting fair presentation and 
compliance with IPSASs set out in the ED are by nature specific to the situation of each State/public sub-sector, as 
first-time adopters, and it is not possible to draw up an exhaustive list. To illustrate our point, we have identified two 
subjects requiring specific relief during the period of transition to IPSASs. 

During the transition period, the entity adopts a mixed accounting basis which is no longer its previous accounting 
basis but not yet IPSAS-compliant. For this reason, transitional exemptions affecting fair presentation and 
compliance with IPSASs cannot take the form of a standard. 

The relief provisions mentioned in the Exposure Draft are of two kinds: 

Noted. Staff’s view on only 
including transitional 
exemptions that affect fair 
presentation are included in 
response to the general 
comment.  
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R# C# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 1(a) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

• Transitional exemptions affecting fair presentation and compliance with IPSASs 

• Transitional exemptions not affecting fair presentation and compliance with IPSASs 

DGFiP believes the distinction between the two types of exemption is all the more necessary because only 
exemptions not affecting fair presentation and compliance with IPSASs would have potential standard status. 

012 A The FMSB agrees with the proposed transitional exemptions included in the Exposure Draft. The transitional 
exemptions appear to be both reasonable and necessary for first time adopters that are in the process of 
transitioning to IPSASB accrual basis standards. 

Noted.  

013 B Yes, we agree. 

Reason:  

The proposed transitional exemption will allow the public sector entities in developing countries time to develop 
appropriate record and model for the recognition and measurement of the elements of the financial statement.  

Further, in view of the fact that financial statements faithfully represent the performance and financial position of the 
reporting entities, it would not be proper to rush into adoption of accrual basis IPSAS if the faithful representation of 
the financial statement cannot be guaranteed. 

It will reduce the cost and efforts that would be required to gather information to enable the entity apply the accrual 
basis IPSAS retrospectively. 

Noted. Comments on 
amendments proposed to the  
transitional exemptions are 
addressed in the response to 
comments on specific 
principles included in the ED. 

 

014 A Yes, the proposed transitional exemptions are adequate and they provide a suitable starting point for accounting in 
accordance with accrual IPSASs.  

Noted.  

015 B Overall Comments 

We agree with the general guidance and approach proposed, which is for a comprehensive set of principles that 
provides relief to entities that adopt accrual basis IPSASs in their financial statements for the first-time.   

We believe it is essential for an entity to comply with each effective IPSAS on the date of adoption of the IPSAS 
framework. However, limited exemptions from requirements should be granted in certain areas where the cost of 
complying would be likely to exceed the benefits to users of financial statements. It is also sensible to prohibit 
retrospective application of IPSASs in certain areas, particularly where retrospective application would require 
judgments by management about past conditions. 

One of the fundamentals for a transitional standard must be to ensure that the adjustments required from previous 
reporting frameworks to IPSASs are transparent to the users of the financial statements. The rationale for 
conversion to IPSAS centres on the anticipated benefits to Public Sector entities of reporting using a single high 

 

Noted. Comments on the 
proposed transitional 
exemptions and the three 
year transitional relief period 
are addressed in SMC3 
comments on specific 
principles included in the ED. 
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R# C# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 1(a) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

quality global set of accounting standards and an awareness that the consistent application of a unique set of 
standards should aid comparability of reported entities.  

Paragraph 128 confirms that a key aim for the standard is to ‘assist users to track the progress of the first-time 
adopter in conforming its accounting policies to the requirements in the applicable IPSASs during the period of 
transition.’  

016 A Yes. The IPSASB proposed transitional exemptions are comprehensive and provided the necessary guidance for 
entities transiting to IPSASs for the first time.    

Noted.  

017 B We agree with the proposed transitional exemptions, and believe that ED 53 provides appropriate relief. 

We believe that such a comprehensive set of transitional exemptions as shown in the ED would help clarify the main 
issues that would need to be addressed by potential first-time adopters of IPSASs. We also expect that these 
exemptions can encourage more public sector entities to make further effort to adopt IPSASs. 

Noted. Concerns on 
implementation guidance are 
addressed below. 

018 A Generally we agree with the proposed Standard and the requirement for public bodies to comply with each 
individual IPSAS on the date of adoption. We also believe that IPSASB’s principle based approach is providing 
helpful support to first time adopters.  

The granting of limited transitional exemptions appears to be both a sensible and practical approach, particularly 
where the costs of complying with specific requirements are likely to exceed the benefits to users of financial 
statements. Also, we agree that retrospective application of some IPSASs should be prohibited as outlined in the 
Exposure Draft, especially where the standards require complex judgements to be made by management about 
past conditions/circumstances. This will inevitably lead to some of the standards being overridden. 

Noted.  

019 A Yes we do agree with the proposed transitional exemptions and believe that the IPSASB would achieve its goal by 
providing appropriate relief to a first-time adopter in transitioning to accrual basis IPSASs. The accrual accounting is 
a complex issue, by providing a relief to entities that adopt the accrual basis International Public Sector Accounting 
Standards (IPSASs) for the first time would lessen the task of preparing financial statements and more entities 
would be willing to adopt IPSASs. 

Noted.  

020 A The ED provides comprehensive guidance, and is principled inasmuch as it distinguishes between exemptions 
which will generally affect fair presentation and those which will not. 

Having said this  

(a) CIPFA agrees with each of the proposed exemptions 

(b) CIPFA is content that the proposals are reasonable. 

Noted.  
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R# C# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 1(a) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

021 B The Cour would have rather welcomed a draft RPG, listing and supporting available practice collected from 
successful experiences that were concluded by unqualified opinions from external auditors.  

(Specific comment on three year transitional relief period).  

Noted.  

The comment on the 
development of an RPG was 
dealt with in the response to 
the general comment. 

Proposals to the three year 
transitional relief period are 
addressed in SMC3. 

022 A We agree with the proposed transitional exemptions included in the Exposure Draft and we also believe that 
IPSASB has achieved its goal in providing relief for the first time adopter to accruals basis IPSASs. 

We have taken this view because we believe that IPSASB has identified all the critical areas of difficulty that bodies 
in the public sector are likely to encounter in making the transition to accruals accounting 

Noted.  

023 B We agree with the proposed transitional exemptions included in the ED. We would like to propose additional 
transitional exemptions that affect fair presentation and compliance with accrual basis IPSASs. 

 

Noted. Proposals to the 
proposed transitional 
exemptions are addressed 
below. 

024 A Yes, I agree with the proposed transitional exemptions included in the Exposure Draft. In the study 14 about 
Transition to the Accrual Basis of Accounting: Guidance for Public Sector Entities elaborated for IFAC-IPSASB 
explains in page 13 about Financial Position, I know that Accrual Basis do not has impact for the process of 
implementation of IPSAS, for this, O have doubt in relation if subsequent events can be include in the Contingent 
Liabilities considering the complexity of application in the Public Sector.  

Noted.  

025 D No comment on SMC1(a).  
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Summary of responses to Specific Matter for Comment (SMC) 1(b): 

STAFF ASSESSMENT OF RESPONSES RECEIVED: These are staff views and do not necessarily reflect the views of IPSASB Members 

CATEGORY (C #) RESPONDENTS (R #) TOTAL 

A – AGREE 003, 004, 005, 007, 009, 010, 012, 013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018, 019, 021, 022, 
023, 024 

18 

B – PARTIALLY AGREE  006, 008 2 

C – DISAGREE   

SUB-TOTAL OF THOSE PROVIDING COMMENTS   

D – DID NOT COMMENT 001, 002, 011, 020, 025 5 

TOTAL RESPONDENTS  25 

 

R# C# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 1(b) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

001 D No comment on SMC1(b).   

002 D No comment on SMC1(b). Noted.  

003 A In our experience IFRS users transitioning from local GAAP to full IFRS found the transition sometimes complex and 
data that had not previously been captured was often required to be captured. This meant changes to processes 
and systems and training for their people. Public Sector Entities used to cash based reporting will find the change to 
full accruals based IPSAS even more demanding. The transitional reliefs become even more relevant in this context.   

Noted.  

 

 

004 A The stated objective of this standard is to ensure that an entity’s first annual financial statements prepared using 
accrual basis IPSASs contain high quality information. Financial information that is relevant, faithfully represented, 
understandable, timely, comparable and verifiable. It is presumed that an objective of the IPSASB in developing this 
first-time standard was to make the adoption of accrual basis IPSASs less onerous for public sector entities. 

Noted.  

005 A We agree that a number of the proposals will give appropriate relief to a first-time adopter in transitioning to accrual 
basis IPSASs. We consider that the proposals relating to deemed cost will assist entities to determine appropriate 
opening balances for their IPSASs financial statements in a cost effective way. We also support the proposal to 
encourage, but not to require, a first-time adopter to provide comparative information. Although we consider that 

Noted.  
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R# C# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 1(b) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

comparative information is extremely important, we acknowledge the IPSASB’s intention to assist entities to report 
in accordance with IPSASs, and note that comparatives will be available in subsequent periods. 

006 B The Council agrees on the principle of setting exemptions to ease transition as described in the ED. However, the 
Council is of the view that the list of temporary exemptions and the length of the transition period are insufficient to 
fully achieve the set goal to provide appropriate relief. 

Noted. Comments on the 
transitional period are 
addressed in SMC3 and the 
comment on the exclusion of 
temporary transitioan 
exemptions are dealt with 
under general comment.  

007 A The AASB agrees that the proposals in the ED achieves the goal of providing appropriate relief to a first-time 
adopter transitioning to accrual basis IPSASs. 

Noted. 

008 B We partially agree. The inclusion of exceptions is essential to the adopter at this first moment, but the component 
members of CFC Brazil believes that the IPSASB has not yet reached its goal in helping the adopter in the transition 
to accrual basis because it is extremely difficult to determine all the issues to be faced by countries. 

Our team also believes that the ED 53 should bring considerations regarding the identification of the triggering event 
of transactions without consideration, and understand, using the Brazilian experience as an example, how the local 
tax specificity may require more technical explanations on the proper accounting treatment of these values. 

Another issue concerns the exception that deals with IPSAS 25, which certainly also involves other IPSAS, 
regarding the adherence to the provisions of local law. 

Considering the characteristic of Brazil’s legal system (code law), and of other Latin American countries, it is 
important that the ED 53 could bring clear informations about how countries should proceed when adopting the 
accrual basis for the first time, so they can deal with any differences between the provisions in IPSAS and the 
provisions of local law, also recommending that it may be reproduced in a comparison board, in which IPSAS can 
be observed. 

Noted. Partly disagreement 
was highlighted to the 
IPSASB. However, it is 
proposed that each 
jurisdiction should develop its 
own detailed guidance based 
on specific needs.  

009 A The SRS-CSPCP agrees with this statement. It is positive that as before it will be possible to perform a first time 
adoption without complete prior year comparatives. The cost-benefit aspect has here been sensibly applied. 

Noted.  

010 A We believe that the IPSASB has achieved its goal in providing appropriate relief to a first-time adopter in 
transitioning to accrual basis IPSASs.  

Noted.  

011 D No comment on SMC1(b).   
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R# C# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 1(b) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

012 A The FMSB agrees that the IPSASB has achieved its goal of providing appropriate relief to a first-time adopter in 
transitioning to the accrual basis standards of the IPSASB. Such a transition is complex and requires that 
management make sound and appropriate judgments regarding accounting matters. Providing a transition period of 
three years will allow time for such judgments to occur. 

Noted.  

013 A Yes, we believe that the IPSASB achieved its goal in providing appropriate relief to a first time adopter 

Reason: 

The exemptions, for example, paragraph 32 and 64 which had been provided under this proposed standard are 
broad based enough to provide adequate relief to a  first time adopter.  

Noted. 

014 A Yes, the objective of providing relief to first-time adopters should be adequately met by the proposed standard. The 
3 years is ample time for a first time adopter to compile all necessary information relating to the exemptions 
provided and also will allow a first time adopter a period to develop reliable models for measuring its assets and 
liabilities.  

Noted.  

015 A We understand the challenge the Board faces in encouraging governments to move forward and adopt the IPSAS 
accounting framework, and at the same time ensuring users and auditors of the financial statements have a 
transparent, comparable and internally consistent set of financial reporting standards to review during transition to 
IPSAS.  

We agree with the objectives as outlined by the Board that provision of transitional relief is most helpful to preparers 
of IPSAS accrual financial statements. 

 

Noted.  

016 A With reference to the comments under (b), we believe the IPSASB has provided clear information on the various 
reliefs available for first time adopters and when to apply them. The detailed guidance provided under - Study 14, 
Transition to the Accrual Basis of Accounting: Guidance for Governments and Government Entities issued by the 
IPSASB, would further assist public sector entities' transition to IPSAS. Local accountancy regulators have 
responsibility to develop detailed guidance to assist entities with the adoption of the accrual basis IPSASs. 

Noted.  

 

 

 

017 A We believe that such a comprehensive set of transitional exemptions as shown in the ED would help clarify the main 
issues that would need to be addressed by potential first-time adopters of IPSASs. We also expect that these 
exemptions can encourage more public sector entities to make further effort to adopt IPSASs. 

Noted.  

018 A Generally we agree with the proposed Standard and the requirement for public bodies to comply with each 
individual IPSAS on the date of adoption. We also believe that IPSASB’s principle based approach is providing 
helpful support to first time adopters.  

Noted.  

Agenda Item 6.3 
Page 18 of 68 



 IPSASB Meeting (June 2014)   

R# C# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 1(b) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

The granting of limited transitional exemptions appears to be both a sensible and practical approach, particularly 
where the costs of complying with specific requirements are likely to exceed the benefits to users of financial 
statements. Also, we agree that retrospective application of some IPSASs should be prohibited as outlined in the 
Exposure Draft, especially where the standards require complex judgements to be made by management about 
past conditions/circumstances. This will inevitably lead to some of the standards being overridden. 

019 A Yes we do agree with the proposed transitional exemptions and believe that the IPSASB would achieve its goal by 
providing appropriate relief to a first-time adopter in transitioning to accrual basis IPSASs. The accrual accounting is 
a complex issue, by providing a relief to entities that adopt the accrual basis International Public Sector Accounting 
Standards (IPSASs) for the first time would lessen the task of preparing financial statements and more entities 
would be willing to adopt IPSASs. 

Noted.  

020 D No comment on SMC1(b).  

021 A Like the IPSAS Board, the Cour des comptes expresses a great interest for a tool dedicated to the first time 
adoption of IPSAS. It acknowledges that the framework and guidance provided until now by the very helpful 
"Study 14" could not pretend to answer to all the questions raised by the implementation of IPSAS for the 
first time. Such questions may arise when an entity is moving from a cash basis system as well as when 
evolving from a preexisting accruals system. This would be the case in France, where most of the public 
sector entities have been compliant with national accruals accounting sets of standards for several years 
now. 

Noted.  

022 A We have taken this view because we believe that IPSASB has identified all the critical areas of difficulty that bodies 
in the public sector are likely to encounter in making the transition to accruals accounting 

Noted.  

023 A We agree that the IPSASB achieved its goal in providing appropriate relief to a first-time adopter in transitioning to 
accrual basis IPSASs to certain extent. We believe that the relief period of three years is too short for a first-time 
adopter which we have further elaborated in our response to Specific Matter for Comment 3. 

Noted.  

024 A Yes, I believe that the IPSASB achieved its goal in provding appropriate relief to a first-time adopter in transitioning 
to accrual basis IPSAS. I suggest for the Board, if agrees, that observes the importance of internal control applied 
for public sector with results of discussions of COSO, EUROSTAT and IFAC.  

Noted.  

025 D No comment on SMC1(b).  
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Specific Matter for Comment (SMC) 2: 

The IPSASB agreed that there should be a differentiation between those transitional exemptions that do not affect the fair presentation of a first-
time adopter`s financial statements and its ability to assert compliance with accrual basis IPSASs, and those that do.  

(a) Do you agree with the proposed differentiation and how it is addressed in the Exposure Draft, and  

(b) Do you agree that the individual categorization is appropriate?   

If not, please provide a reason for your response and provide an alternative approach. 

Summary of responses to Specific Matter for Comment 2(a): 

STAFF ASSESSMENT OF RESPONSES RECEIVED: These are staff views and do not necessarily reflect the views of IPSASB Members 

CATEGORY (C #) RESPONDENTS (R #) TOTAL 

A – AGREE 001, 002, 003, 004, 005, 007, 009, 012, 013, 014, 015, 016, 017, 018, 019, 020, 
022, 023, 024 

19 

B – PARTIAL AGREEMENT 008, 010, 021 3 

C – DOES NOT AGREE 006, 011 2 

SUB-TOTAL OF THOSE PROVIDING COMMENTS   

D – DID NOT COMMENT 025 1 

TOTAL RESPONDENTS  25 

 

R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 2(a) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

001 A Agree Noted.  

002 A Agree.  Noted.  

003 A We welcome the approach of the IPSASB as set out in paragraph 26 of distinguishing the exemptions 
between those that impact fair presentation and those that do not. This provides a much needed level of 
clarity for preparers and users alike.  

Noted.  
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R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 2(a) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

(a) We agree with the proposed differentiation and how it is addressed. 

004 A The differentiation between exemption types results from the inclusion of a relief period. Noted.  

005 A We note that ED 53 is proposing to make a distinction between entities that are complying fully with 
IPSASs and those that are in transition to IPSASs.  If the IPSASB decides to proceed with the three 
year transitional relief period, we consider that this distinction would be appropriate. As noted in our 
response to Matter for Comment 1, we support the proposed differentiation between the types of 
exemptions. 

Noted. 

006 B The Council believes that the proposed differentiation is all the more necessary that, as described in the 
response to question 1, the Council suggests that the transition period requirements, namely the 
transition period definition and the exemptions that affect fair presentation and compliance with IPSASs 
during the transition period, should remain within the remit of those adopting countries only. 

As a consequence, exemptions that affect compliance would be merely considered as 
recommendations, whereas those that do not affect compliance would be authoritative. 

 

Noted.  

Noted. Staff is, however, of the view that 
transitional exemptions and provisions 
should be included in a single 
pronouncement because preparers will get 
a better understanding of the impact that 
the transition to accrual accounting will 
have on their financial statements during 
the period of transition. If a RPG is 
developed, preparers will be allowed to do 
whatever they want during the transition to 
accrual accounting, which will impair the 
credibility of the financial statements 
during the period of transition. By 
separating the exemptions that do not 
affect fair presentation and compliance 
from those that do, staff is of the view that 
the remaining principles in the IPSASs will 
not comprise a comprehensive set of 
principles. 

007 A The AASB agrees with the proposed differentiation and how it is addressed in the ED Noted.  

008 B CFC Brazil agrees that there should be differentiation between exceptions and the ability to enforce 
compliance of the accrual basis, but believes that the ED 53 is not clear on how government agencies 
will reconcile the absence of such records and other events that will be recorded by the entity. 

Noted.  

The proposed ED includes guidance 
around the application of deemed cost to 
address those circumstances were no cost 
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R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 2(a) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

Example 

The ED 53 foresee the exception of 3 years for state fixed assets (IPSAS 17), but when building an 
infrastructure asset the calculation result of the entity will be negatively impacted by the output of these 
values. If there is no corresponding incorporation of this asset, the analysis  of the consolidated balance 
sheets will present inconsistency, similar to what currently happens in brazilian public accounting. 

records are available on adoption of 
accrual basis IPSASs.  

The IPSASB was of the view that, to 
encourage entities to adopt accrual 
basis IPSASs, some relief had to be 
provided to ease the adoption of accrual 
basis IPSASs. To address this concern, 
the ED proposed detailed disclosures 
about the transitional exemptions and 
provisions adopted, and how these 
affected the financial position, financial 
performance and cash flows, where 
appropriate.   

009 A The SRS-CSPCP agrees with the proposed differentiation. It is also of the opinion that the individual 
categorisation is appropriate. 

Noted.  

010 B Differentiation between transitional exemptions  

We agree that by not applying certain principles on the first time adoption of accrual basis IPSASs, fair 
presentation of the financial statements will be affected, along with a first-time adopter’s ability to assert 
compliance with accrual basis IPSASs. We do, however, have reservations about using the headings 
“affect the fair presentation of the financial statements” and “ability to assert compliance with IPSASs” in 
differentiating between the categories of transitional exemptions in the Exposure Draft. 

We are concerned that by indicating that certain principles in IPSASs either do, or do not affect 
compliance and fair presentation on first-time adoption, it may set a precedent for the application of 
those principles going forward. For example, by indicating in the Exposure Draft that not preparing a 
segment report does not affect the fair presentation of the financial statements, might compromise the 
application of the IPSAS on Segment Reporting after first-time adoption. 

We are therefore of the view that more neutral terms should be used to distinguish the transitional 
exemptions that can be adopted on the initial adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. We propose that terms 
such as “voluntary exemptions” and “mandatory transitional provisions” should be used to distinguish 
the transitional provisions in this Exposure Draft, and that the transitional provisions should be 
categorised and re-organised on this basis. As an example, “voluntary exemptions” could include those 
relating to deemed cost, and those that relate to IPSAS 4, IPSAS 10, etc. “Mandatory transitional 
provisions” will include those that related to IPSAS 5, IPSAS 6, IPSAS 21, IPSAS 26, etc. 

Noted.  

The proposal on classifying the transitional 
exemptions differently has been 
highlighted to the IPSASB for its  
consideration.  
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R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 2(a) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

It is however still important to inform first time adopters of the potential consequences of applying 
certain transitional provisions or exemptions. The Exposure Draft should therefore indicate or outline 
that fair presentation and/or an entity’s ability to assert compliance with IPSASs may be affected if it 
applies certain exemptions. This could be achieved by adding a single paragraph listing which 
transitional provisions/transitional exemptions could affect fair presentation and compliance with 
IPSASs if applied.  

During discussions with constituents, it was indicated that, while the Exposure Draft should make clear 
which transitional provisions/transitional exemptions affect fair presentation and compliance with 
IPSASs, it should also be clear that entities should assess the specific facts and circumstances in 
making this assessment. For example: A first-time adopter adopts the three year transitional relief 
period for the recognition and measurement of traffic fines because insufficient data is available about 
the value of fines issued, values written off, the compromises reached with offenders etc.  The relief 
period is not applied to any other class of non-exchange revenue. The revenue received from fines is 
not significant in relation to the financial statements as a whole. In this instance, the entity may 
conclude that, by adopting this transitional exemption, fair presentation compliance with IPSASs will not 
be significantly affected. Thus, by applying judgement to the facts and circumstances, the first-time 
adopter will be able to achieve fair presentation and assert compliance with accrual basis IPSASs 
despite the fact that it adopted a transitional exemption that would otherwise impact fair presentation 
and its ability to assert compliance with accrual basis IPSASs.  

As a result, we propose adding wording to the Exposure Draft that makes it clear that the while the 
adoption of certain transitional exemptions is likely to affect fair presentation and compliance, the 
specific facts and circumstances need to be considered by the entity, and judgement applied.  

011 D During the transition period, the entity adopts a mixed accounting basis which is no longer its previous 
accounting basis but not yet IPSAS-compliant. For this reason, transitional exemptions affecting fair 
presentation and compliance with IPSASs cannot take the form of a standard. 

The relief provisions mentioned in the Exposure Draft are of two kinds: 

• Transitional exemptions affecting fair presentation and compliance with IPSASs 

• Transitional exemptions not affecting fair presentation and compliance with IPSASs 

DGFiP believes the distinction between the two types of exemption is all the more necessary because 
only exemptions not affecting fair presentation and compliance with IPSASs would have potential 
standard status. 

Noted. Staff is of the view that, in providing 
appropriate relief to a first-time adopter, 
exemptions that affect the first-time 
adopter’s ability to assert compliance 
should be included in the pronouncement. 
Transitional exemptions and provisions 
should be included in a single 
pronouncement because preparers will get 
a better understanding of the impact that 
the transition to accrual accounting will 
have on their financial statements during 
the period of transition. If a RPG is 
developed, preparers will be allowed to do 

Agenda Item 6.3 
Page 23 of 68 



 IPSASB Meeting (June 2014)   

R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 2(a) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

whatever they want during the transition to 
accrual accounting, which will impair the 
credibility of the financial statements 
during the period of transition. By 
separating the exemptions that do not 
affect fair presentation and compliance 
from those that do, staff is of the view that 
the remaining principles in the IPSASs will 
not comprise a comprehensive set of 
principles. 

Specific disclosures in the notes to the 
transitional IPSAS financial statements 
aimed at providing sufficient information to 
the users in understading the transition to 
accrual basis IPSASs, including 
information of items that have been 
measured and recognized during the 
period of transition, should be provided to 
ensure that information provided to users 
of financial statements, remains relevant 
and appropriate.  

012 A The FMSB agrees with the approach taken by the IPSASB regarding the ability to assert compliance 
with the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with IPSASB standards. The overall objective of the 
transition is to provide a fair presentation in accordance with IPSASB standards and this approach 
emphasizes the substance of the matter over the form.  We agree with this approach. 

Noted.  

013 A We agree with the proposed differentiation and how it is addressed in the exposure draft.  

Reason: We believe that this would enhance the objective of providing broad based relief to first-time 
adopter. There should be a differentiation between transitional exemptions that do not affect fair 
presentation and those that do because an entity cannot make an explicit statement about compliance 
with accrual basis IPSASs unless the transitional exemptions that affect fair presentation and 
compliance have expired or the relevant items have been recognized and/or measured in accordance 
with the applicable IPSAS. It would encourage public sector entities and promote wider adoption of 
accrual basis IPSAS. 

Noted.  
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R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 2(a) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

014 A  Yes, the differentiation is clear, concise and can easily be implemented. Noted. 

 015 A We agree with a clear differentiation between those transitional exemptions that do not affect the fair 
presentation of a first-time adopter’s financial statements and its ability to assert compliance with 
accrual basis IPSASs, and those that do allow an assertion for full IPSAS compliance.  

Noted.  

016 A We agree with the differentiation between those transitional exemptions that do not affect the fair 
presentation of a first-time adopters financial statements and its ability to assert compliance with accrual 
basis IPSASs, and those that do. This differentiation by the IPSASB we believe will achieve the 
following benefits to these key groups of users. 

i) Entities preparing IPSAS financial statements: The differentiation provides clear guidance to 
these entities by specifying the exemptions and standards as indicated under paragraphs 32 to 60. 
The inability to fully comply with all the various IPSASs and not making full claim would mislead 
users /readers of the Public entities financial statements. As indicated under paragraph 26, a first 
time adopter shall claim full compliance with IPSASs only when it has complied with all the 
requirements of the applicable IPSASs effective at that date.  

ii) Auditors: The clear differentiation between the exemptions that affect and those that do not affect  
compliance with IPSASs would minimise the  information gap that might be associated with 
providing opinion by Auditors on Entities adopting the Standards for the first time. For example, the 
exemptions provided under paragraphs, 32 to 60 and 62 to 125 constitute an area where Auditors 
can develop a checklist based on this guidance to monitor compliance by Entities in the 
measurement and recognition of assets and liabilities. The Auditors would also be able to engage 
management based on this guidance in order to arrive at a common conclusion. 

Noted.  

017 A We generally agree with the proposed differentiation and the individual categorization. 

However, given the potentially significant impact to the users of IPSAS basis financial statements, we 
believe that the entities should emphasize the application of transitional exemptions, if applicable. That 
is, if the entities follow specific disclosure requirements prescribed in paragraph 126(a), they should 
highlight this fact, and that application of transitional exemptions may have influence on the fair 
presentation and compliance with accrual basis IPSASs. Accordingly, we propose that IPSASB should 
require the entities to denote, for example, at the beginning of their financial statements, that they 
incorporated transitional exemptions, in order to prevent misunderstanding by inexperienced financial 
statement users. 

Noted. However, including the specific 
requirement as proposed is too 
prescriptive at a Standards level. 
Paragraph 126(a) of the ED does require 
the first-time adopter to disclose the extent 
to which it has taken advantage of 
transitional exemptions that impact fair 
presentation and compliance with accrual 
basis IPSASs, but anything more than that 
will be too specific.   

018 A We agree with the proposed differentiation of transitional exemptions as outlined in the ED 53.   Noted.  
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R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 2(a) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

019 A We do agree with the proposed differentiation and individual categorization seems to be appropriate. 
Fair presentation is vital, otherwise financial statements would not be useful, in fact they may be 
misleading.  

In order for financial statements to be useful to users (such as investors or loan providers), they must 
present financial information faithfully, i.e. financial information must faithfully represent the economic 
phenomena which it purports to represent. 

Noted.  

020 A CIPFA agrees with the proposed differentiation. This matches the distinction which the ED IPSAS 
makes between: 

 - financial statements which achieve fair presentation in line with full accrual IPSAS, which may 
be published as ‘first IPSAS financial statements’; and 

- financial statements which achieve a lesser presentation within limits prescribed by the 
IPSAS, which may be published as ‘transitional IPSAS financial statements’ for a limited (not 
more than three year) period, in advance of a  planned transition to full IPSAS. 

Noted.  

021 B The Cour des comptes, as an external auditor, is concerned by the consequences of the 
mechanism proposed in the ED, according to which an entity that has taken advantages of 
exemptions that affect fair presentation would not be able to claim compliance with IPSAS until the 
transitional period is over. 

It may then appear a strong risk of uncertainty for the entity and for the external auditor, who will 
not be able, during the transitional period, to assess the compliance of the financial statements 
neither to the IPSAS, nor to a previous set of standards. 

Practice and experience show that, when moving to IPSAS, entities must withdraw from their 
previous accounting basis which are not suitable anymore, due, for example, to the removal of 
previous information systems or to new orientations in accounting policies. In that regard, entities 
will not be able to revert to their previous accounting basis and, in the same time, claim to be 
compliant with IPSAS. 

This is a serious concern, especially for International Organizations which could be exposed to 
qualified opinions from their external auditors motivated by the presence of exemptions, which 
would appear as a sanction despite their efforts to improve the quality of their financial 
statements through a long process of implementation of IPSAS. 

On the basis of its experience of the public sector, the Cour des comptes would not welcome 
alternative endeavors such as a dual presentation of financial statements (one set compliant with 

Noted.  Even though a first-time adopter 
may not comply with all the accrual basis 
IPSASs during the period of transition 
following the adoption of certain 
transitional exemptions and provisions 
that impact fair presentation and its ability 
to assert compliance with accrual basis 
IPSASs, acknowledging that this IPSAS 
has been applied during the period of 
transition, should be sufficient and 
acceptable. 

To encourage entities to adopt accrual 
basis IPSASs, the IPSASB agreed that 
some relief had to be provided to ease 
the adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. 
To address this concern, the ED 
proposed detailed disclosures about the 
transitional exemptions and provisions 
adopted, and how these affected the 
financial position, financial performance 
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R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 2(a) 
STAFF COMMENTS 

the former basis, and one as a prototype on the basis of IPSAS), possibly leading to confusion, 
redundant costs, even misbeliefs and frauds. 

The Cour des comptes would have preferred that the projected standard allow a progressive 
compliance with IPSAS, step by step during the transitional period, on the basis of predefined 
milestones established by the entity, endorsed by its governance, and disclosed within the financial 
statements, in the preface or in the notes. 

and cash flows, where appropriate. 

022 A We agree with both the proposed differentiation of transitional exemptions between those affecting the 
fair presentation of the financial statements and those that do not and also with the allocation of 
individual items between these two categories. 

Noted.  

023 A We agree with the proposed differentiation and how it is addressed. The individual categorisation is also 
appropriate. 

Noted.  

024 A Yes, I agree with the proposed differentiation and how it is addressed in the Exposure Draft.  Noted.  

025 D No specifc comment on SMC2(a)   

Summary of responses to Specific Matter for Comment 2(b): 

STAFF ASSESSMENT OF RESPONSES RECEIVED: These are staff views and do not necessarily reflect the views of IPSASB Members 

CATEGORY (C #) RESPONDENTS (R #) TOTAL 

A – AGREE 001, 002, 003, 005, 06, 007, 009, 012, 013, 014, 016, 017, 018, 019, 020, 022, 
023, 024 

18 

B – PARTIAL AGREEMENT 010 2 

C – DOES NOT AGREE   

SUB-TOTAL OF THOSE PROVIDING COMMENTS   

D – DID NOT COMMENT 004, 008, 011, 015, 021, 025 6 

TOTAL RESPONDENTS  25 
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R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 2(b)   
STAFF COMMENTS 

001 A Agree. Noted.  

002 A Agree.  Noted.  

003 A We agree the individual categorization is appropriate. Noted.  

004 D No specific comment on SMC2(b).  Noted.  

005 A We support the individual classification of the proposals. Noted.   

006 A Among the exemptions proposed in the ED, the Council identified none that would have to be moved 
from one category to the other. 

Noted.  

007 A The AASB also agrees that the individual categorisation is appropriate. Noted. 

008 D No specific comment on 2(b).   

009 A It is also of the opinion that the individual categorisation is appropriate. Noted.  

010 B Categorization of transitional exemptions 

While we have proposed that the transitional exemptions should be classified in a different way, if the 
IPSASB continues with its current classification, we agree with the individual categorisation between 
transitional exemptions that affect the fair presentation and compliance with accrual basis IPSASs, and 
those that do not, except for the categorization of the transitional exemptions relating to IPSAS 18 
Segment Reporting. 

According to IPSAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, an entity cannot achieve fair presentation 
unless it has complied with all the requirements of all the IPSASs. Even though IPSAS 18 provides 
information in addition to the information required on the elements presented in the financial 
statements, it is in our view still necessary for a first-time adopter to comply with the requirements in this 
Standard before compliance with accrual basis IPSASs can be claimed. As the segment report often 
provides an important linkage between the financial statements and service performance information, 
we are of the view that this information is important in assessing both financial and non-financial 
performance and contributes to accountability and decision-making. 

The Exposure Draft also seems to inconsistently classify exemptions that deal with disclosure and 
presentation issues, particularly when the proposals for IPSAS 18 are considered in relation to the 

Noted. Staff is of the view that the 
explanation in the Basis for Conclusions 
could be elaborated to explain the 
IPSASBs rationale as to why the relief will 
be appropriate  
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proposals for IPSAS 20. IPSAS 20 Related Party Disclosures requires the disclosure of information 
about related party relationships and transactions with related parties. The Exposure Draft currently 
allows entities a three year relief period for these disclosures. The presentation of information about 
related party relationships and transactions with related parties also does not impact any of the 
elements presented in the financial statements, but this disclosure is seen as important from an 
accountability and decision making perspective. This Exposure Draft classifies the transitional 
exemptions for IPSAS 20 under the category that affects the fair presentation of a first-time adopter’s 
financial statements and its ability to assert compliance with accrual basis IPSASs.  

Given that we are of the view that segment information can provide useful information for accountability 
and decision-making, we are of the view that the transitional exemptions relating to IPSAS 18 should be 
included as a category of transitional exemptions that affect the fair presentation of a first-time adopter’s 
financial statements and its ability to assert compliance with accrual basis IPSASs. 

011 D No specific comment on SMC2(b).  

012 A The FMSB agrees with the categorization. Noted.  

013 A We agree that the individual categorization is appropriate.  

Reason: We are of the opinion that this would reduce to the minimum divergence in treatment of 
financial transactions. The individual categorization is appropriate because it will help reduce the 
complexities that may be encountered by an entity implementing the standard. By making individual 
categorizations, It will also help reduce inconsistencies in such implementation. 

Noted.  

014 A Response: Yes, this is sufficient. Noted.  

 015 D No specific comment on SMC2(b).   

016 A The individual categorisation is deemed appropriate as it captures most of the key areas and aspects 
required to address the issues of compliance with the Standards. 

Noted.  

017 A We generally agree with the proposed differentiation and the individual categorization. Noted. 

018 A We agree with the individual categorisation and believe that it will help public bodies transitioning to 
accruals for the first time to focus their efforts on critical areas. It may also mean that they will be better 
able to prepare financial statements showing fair presentation within a shorter time frame. 

Noted.  

019 A We do agree with the proposed differentiation and individual categorization seems to be appropriate. 
Fair presentation is vital, otherwise financial statements would not be useful, in fact they may be 
misleading.  

Noted.  
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020 A CIPFA is content that the individual categorization is appropriate. Noted.  

021 D No specific comment to SMC2(b)  

022 A We agree with both the proposed differentiation of transitional exemptions between those 
affecting .affecting the fair presentation of the financial statements and those that do not and also with 
the allocation of individual items between these two categories. 

In our opinion, this approach will permit public sector bodies planning to make the move to accruals 
accounting to first concentrate their efforts on the key areas that could cause them difficulty and so 
produce financial statements showing fair presentation in the shortest possible time. 

Noted.  

023 A The individual categorisation is also appropriate. Noted.  

024 A Yes, I agree with the individual categorization is appropriate. Noted.  

025 D No specific comment to SMC 2(b).   
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Specific Matter for Comment (SMC) 3:  

This Exposure Draft proposes a relief period of three years for the recognition and/or measurement of specific assets and/or liabilities in allowing a 
first-time adopter to transition to accrual basis IPSASs. Do you agree that a relief period of three years is appropriate? If not, please indicate the 
time frame that, in your view, would be appropriate, supported with the reason for the longer or shorter transitional relief period. 

STAFF ASSESSMENT OF RESPONSES RECEIVED: These are staff views and do not necessarily reflect the views of IPSASB Members 

CATEGORY (C #) RESPONDENTS (R #) TOTAL 

A – AGREE 003, 010, 012, 013, 014, 016,017, 018, 019, 020, 022 11 

B – PARTIALLY AGREE  001, 002, 005, 007, 009, 015, 023, 024 8 

C – DISAGREE  004, 006, 008, 011, 021 5 

SUB-TOTAL OF THOSE PROVIDING COMMENTS   

D – DID NOT COMMENT 025 1 

TOTAL RESPONDENTS  25 

 

R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 3 
STAFF COMMENTS 

001 B We propose the period shoud be entended from 3 years to 5 years for transitional period for first-time adopter to 
transition to accrual basis IPSASs to ensure surplus balance in Government Financial Statement.  

*This proposal was based on JANM Sabah Accrual Committee members meeting on 30 October 2013 at 9.00am 

Noted. Comments on the 
proposed transitional period 
have been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration. 

002 B We agree with a relief period of only three years for those entities that have implemented the Cash Basis IPSAS.  In 
those countries that are developing their capacity, our experience indicates that it takes 10-15 years to implement the 
Cash Basis IPSAS; we would anticipate another 5-10 years to implement the accrual IPSAS. 

Noted. Comments on the 
proposed transitional period 
have been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration. 

003 A We agree with the proposed transitional exemptions and believe that the three year time frame for full compliance is 
appropriate. 

The time frame of the relief period is a matter of some debate. A shorter period is more desirable in achieving 

Support for the three relief 
period noted.  
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R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 3 
STAFF COMMENTS 

compliance and comparability however a shorter period may be detrimental to encouraging users to move from cash 
basis to full accrual basis. On balance we agree a relief period of three years is appropriate. 

004 C As indicated in response to matter 1, the three year relief period is an arbitrary time frame for which a public sector 
entity may take more or less time to comply. 

The inclusion of relief periods in the transitional exemptions however results in added complexity and reduces 
understandability of the financial statements. Relief periods are included in a number of other IPSASs and are 
proposed to be similarly included in this standard. Relief periods for other sections are from the perspective the public 
sector entity is already following the International Public Sector Accounting (IPSA) Handbook and allows the entity 
time to adjust their accounting systems, for example, to capture the new information that is now being required while 
still being IPSASs compliant.  

Alternatively, when a public sector entity is adopting the IPSA Handbook for the first-time and a relief period is 
allowed, the entity is not truly adopting the IPSA Handbook. Adoption of the IPSA Handbook does not mean following 
some of its standards. The financial statements prepared by a public sector entity during the relief period will have 
limited understandability, comparability and consistency due to the many exemptions offered and the multitude of time 
periods over which an entity can become compliant. 

There is no clear rationale indicated in the Exposure Draft as to why the IPSASB is trying to develop guidance to be 
followed by a public sector entity prior to its full adoption of IPSASs. Regardless of whether an entity is or is not in 
compliance with the relief period guidance, the financial statements are not IPSASs compliant. For example, 
paragraph 40 indicates “… a first-time adopter shall only change its accounting policies to better conform to the 
accounting policies of IPSAS 23.” Regardless of whether a public sector entity complies with the requirements in 
paragraph 40 during the relief period, the entity will not be compliance with IPSASs and receive a qualified opinion if it 
has elected any fair presentation exemptions. 

Alternatives to providing a relief period which would have made the adoption of IPSASs less onerous for a public 
sector entity while still producing high quality financial statements would include: 

• Allowing either retrospective or prospective adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. Prospective adoption would still 
require the reporting on transition of assets and liabilities required under IPSASs measured in accordance with 
the respective IPSASs, or 

• Allowing a public sector entity to determine deemed cost on the date of transition for various assets and 
liabilities. Allowing deemed cost to be determined during the relief period as proposed in the Exposure Draft 
makes the adoption process unnecessarily complex and the financial statements during this period difficult to 
understand. 

Noted. Comments on the 
proposed transitional period 
and concerns relating to the 
complexity and 
understandability of the 
financial statements during 
the transitional period have 
been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration. 

 

 

Noted. Staff is of the view 
that a first-time adopter 
should be allowed some 
relief period on the adoption 
of accrual basis IPSASs to 
develop appropriate 
systems and models for 
recognizing and measuring 
its assets and/or liabilities. 

005 B As noted in our response to Matter for Comment 1, we support those proposals that would affect fair presentation. Noted. Comments on the 
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R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 3 
STAFF COMMENTS 

If the IPSASB proceeds with its proposal to give first-time adopters a relief period of three years from the 
recognition and/or measurement of certain items we would prefer that the period be limited to one or two years so 
that entities’ financial statements will be fairly presented with complete and useful information earlier.   

 

proposed transitional period 
have been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration. 

006 C The Council understands that, in accordance with the ED, non-compliance with the specific requirements set for the 
transition period would prevent compliance to IPSASs at the end of the transition period. The Council is of the view 
that, should the IPSAS Board finalise the standard using the requirements as proposed in the ED, practical difficulties 
could arise upon implementation of the standard due to: 

• A transition period perceived as too short, 

• A lack of relief with respect to the identification of controlled entities: an additional exemption should be 
introduced to allow a progressive timeline to identify controlled entities. 

Additionally, the length of the transition period, a three-year period as proposed in the ED, is perceived as too short, 
especially for those countries that would shift from a cash basis accounting to the accrual basis IPSASs. This is also 
developed in the Council’s detailed response to specific matter for comment 3 below. 

The Council favours an approach that would leave the responsibility of defining its own progressive transition 
requirements to each IPSASs-adopting country. As a result, the length of the transition period, as well as the 
temporary exemptions to IPSASs, would be adapted to the nature of the transition (depending on whether the 
previous basis of accounting is cash or accruals basis) and to the resources each country is ready to dedicate to the 
transition to IPSASs. 

Also, because transitional IPSAS financial statements do not comply to any official set of standards, the 
Council believes that each adopting country should be responsible for designing those standards that should be used 
during the transition period, either IPSASs or local standards alone or a mix of both, and for how long. 

In addition, the Council believes that providing financial information during the transition period would highly enhance 
financial statements users’ understanding; requirements as to this information should stand in the authoritative part. 

With respect to the length of the transition period as proposed in the ED, the Council thinks it is too short, especially 
when considering transition from cash basis accounting to accrual basis IPSASs. As such, various experiences of 
carrying a State’s properties inventory, and of measuring the related assets, show that a three-year transition period 
proves to be too short a period. The IPSAS Board decided that three years is the longest period of time that should be 
permitted to settle transition issues, whereas the Council believes that defining a maximum three-year period is 
unrealistic. 

Noted. Comments on the 
proposed transitional period 
have been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration. 

Noted. This will be 
addressed in the response 
to IPSAS 6 comments.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Noted. This is already 
addressed in the disclosure 
requirements proposed in 
the ED.  

007 B The AASB considers that the length of an appropriate transition period will depend on how prepared an entity is at the Noted. Comments on the 
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R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 3 
STAFF COMMENTS 

date of adoption of IPSASs.  If an entity has not gathered the relevant information, at the date of adoption then the 
proposed three-year transition period may well not be achievable (for example, because fixed asset registers may 
take some time to be established and properly populated). However, if at the date of adoption an entity had gathered 
all the necessary information on assets and liabilities then three years would be ample time.   

 

proposed transitional period 
have been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration. 

Staff notes that it would be 
difficult to prescribe how 
prepared an entity should 
be before adoption of 
accrual basis IPSAS. Staff 
proposes that the Basis for 
Conclusions should 
emphasize that, regardless 
of the transitional period 
allowed, a first-time adopter 
should plan and prepare 
well in advance for the 
adoption of accrual basis 
IPSASs.  

008 C CFC Brazil members considers that the transitional regime for accrual basis is very complex, and understands that it it 
must be implemented gradually, according to the reality of the adopter, that is only one able to measure the impact 
and the years required for full implementation. 

Considering this, the three-year period is short to implement certain exceptions (such intangible assets or the 
complete set of investment properties), and long for others (such as the record of equipment and other fixed assets). 
The implementation strategy depends on a few factors about the specificities of each entity and contries. 

Thus, each country should establish its strategy of implementing new standards according to the degree of complexity 
of its current accounting and technical and political conditions to the transition, explaining in notes the level of 
adherence to new standards if partly (which type of partiality) or if fully. 

Noted. Comments on the 
proposed transitional period 
have been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration. 

 

009 B The SRS-CSPCP is of the opinion that for entities implementing accrual accounting for the first time, the transitional 
period of 3 years should be considered as a minimum; better would be a transitional period of up to 5 years. 
Particularly in the public sector, changes require a great deal of time, especially when revisions of laws are subject to 
democratic decision. The large number of stakeholders involved and the reliance on external assignments, which are 
frequently subject to public tender, also demands a lot of time. 

Furthermore as a rule it is always challenging to carry through new projects in the public sector; if more time is 

Noted. Comments on the 
proposed transitional period 
have been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration. 
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R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 3 
STAFF COMMENTS 

allowed for implementation, it is more likely that the project is accepted. 

010 A We agree that the proposed relief period of three years is appropriate. In providing the three year relief period, we 
acknowledge that entities wanting to transition to accrual basis IPSASs should plan their transition in advance of the 
adoption date to ensure that appropriate records are obtained and that the required information is compiled timeously.   

We are however of the view that the IPSASB should strengthen its view in the Basis for Conclusions regarding how it 
arrived at the three year transitional relief period. In particular, the Basis for Conclusions should emphasise that, 
regardless of the transitional period allowed entities should plan and prepare well in advance of date of adoption of 
accrual basis IPSASs. The IPSASB should also highlight the preparedness of entities in the Implementation 
Guidance.  

his Exposure draft states that if assets were recognised under a previous basis of accounting, a first-time adopter may 
only adopt three year transitional relief for the measurement of these assets and/or liabilities. We propose that the 
Implementation Guidance should explain that a first-time adopter that takes advantage of this exemption should not 
derecognise any of its assets that were recognised under its previous basis of accounting, but that the exemption 
applies to the measurement of its assets and/or liabilities. 

Support for the three year 
transitional period noted.  

 

Agree. The Basis for 
Conclusions will elaborate 
on how the IPSASB has 
concluded on the 
transitional period agreed 
(subject to the IPSASB’s 
reconsideration of the three 
year period.  

Agree. This will be 
explained in the 
Implementation Guidance. 

011 C We believe that the length of the transition period as well as the definition and scope of the exemptions affecting fair 
presentation and compliance with IPSASs are outside the remit of the IPSAS Board, in that compliance with IPSASs 
starts on the date of their adoption (which is at the end of the transition period). The necessary flexibility which goes 
with the gradual introduction of IPSASs cannot be standardised, because the starting point is different from one State 
to another and from one public entity to another within each State. Indeed, public accounting systems differ from one 
State to another (application of cash or accrual accounting or a mixed approach) and may differ from one sub-sector 
to another within the same State (central government, local government, social security organisations). It is, therefore, 
the role of each State to determine the length of the transition period and the types of exemption, depending on its 
specific situation and characteristics and the resources it can/wishes to allocate for this purpose. Therefore, DGFiP 
considers that exemptions affecting fair presentation and compliance with IPSASs cannot be dealt with through a 
standard. Conversely, exemptions not affecting fair presentation and compliance with IPSASs could be dealt with 
through a standard.  

DGFiP believes that it is necessary to define a transition period. However, it does not believe that it is the role of the 
IPSAS Board to decide the length of the period, because public accounting systems differ from one State to another 
(application of cash or accrual accounting or a mixed approach) and may differ from one public entity to another within 
the same State.  

In any case, a transition period of three years seems insufficient. 

Noted. Comments on the 
proposed transitional period 
have been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration. 
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R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 3 
STAFF COMMENTS 

012 A The FMSB agrees that a relief period is appropriate for the recognition and/or measurement of specific assets and/or 
liabilities for a first-time adopter. A three year transition period will allow an entity time to make the necessary changes 
to its accounting policies and procedures, train staff and modify accounting systems. The three year period allowed by 
the IPSASB appears reasonable and we have no basis to suggest either a longer or shorter period. 

Support for the three year 
transitional period noted.  

013 A We believe three years is sufficient time for any first-time adopter to gather relevant data, restructure a system, build 
staff competences and provide them with all the necessary job support.  

Furthermore, a three-year period is a more manageable time frame. Also an entity that proposes to transit to accrual 
basis IPSAS would have prepared in advance for it. For example in Nigeria, the transiting date is expected to be 2015 
but affected public entities have known of this for over two years now and have gradually been preparing to effectively 
complete the transition. Consequently, it is our opinion that three-year is appropriate. 

Support for the three year 
transitional period noted.  

 

 

014 A Yes, the 3 years should be sufficient relief as it will allow ample time for first time adopters to develop reliable models 
for measuring their assets and liabilities.   

Support for the three year 
transitional relief period 
noted.   

015 B Whilst we understand the Board’s desire to simplify the process of transition, our overall view is that the transitional 
relief period of three years is too short a timeframe for full compliance under IPSAS for many public sector entities. It 
may help if the Board explains its rationale used to determine a transitional period of three years. Public Sector 
entities may not have the necessary accounting or change-management experience to ensure full compliance to 
IPSAS within a three year transitional period. We therefore believe many developing countries may find compliance 
difficult with a three year transition threshold. 

We also note that there are currently different transitional time-lines across specific IPSASs. For example, IPSAS 17 
and IPSAS 23 have a five year transition period, whereas IPSAS 6 and IPSAS 8 have a three year transition period. 
To overlay a further three year period per ED53 for the transitional first-time adoption of all standards may add 
confusion to the preparers of the IPSAS first-time financial reports. 

We discuss below two alternative approaches to transition government entities to accrual basis IPSAS. Our ‘preferred’ 
treatment would require entities to name a date of full IPSAS adoption and not include transitional adjustments in the 
financial statements. However in the event that you consider this will not be enough encouragement for some 
countries to transition, our suggested ‘alternative’ approach allows for transitional adjustments to be included within 
the financial statements but would have a five year, rather than a three year, transitional relief period.  

Preferred Transitional Approach   

We have helped many organizations move between accounting frameworks in multiple jurisdictions. From our 
experience, a ‘preferred transitional approach,’ is a ‘disclosure approach’ to transition, to clearly articulate and 
disclose, in the reporting periods prior to full adoption of a new set of accounting standards, the potential adjustments 

Noted. Comments on the 
proposed transitional period 
have been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for consideration. 

Agree. The Basis for 
Conclusions will elaborate 
on how the IPSASB has 
concluded on the 
transitional period agreed 
(subject to the IPSASB’s 
reconsideration of the three 
year period.  

 

 

 

 

Noted.The proposal will be 
highlighted to the IPSAS for 
its consideration.  
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R# C # 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

SMC 3 
STAFF COMMENTS 

and reconciliations from the old reporting framework to the new reporting accounting standards as and when the 
amendments are determined during the transition period. We consider a transition period of five years to be more 
realistic, with options to have a shorter period. However, on the date of transition a full adoption of the new framework 
is undertaken.  The date of transition should be the beginning of the earliest comparative period to be presented in the 
financial statements.  

This preferred approach allows preparers of first-time accrual based IPSAS statements to benefit from being able to 
work on their IPSAS conversion projects without the scrutiny and pressure of IPSAS transitional external financial 
reporting and auditing. Under our preferred approach, preparers would still be required to outline the key transitional 
issues, decisions and possible impacts as they progress towards a given transition date, but the clarity of full 
compliance under IPSAS at one point in time would benefit both those preparing and those using the financial reports.  
A mandatory disclosure of specific commitments to complete particular aspects of the transition and reporting against 
this might be helpful to prevent transition fatigue and failure to complete the transition. 

While the disclosures relating to progress should be subject to the same audit procedures as other financial statement 
disclosures, this is not the same level as required to express an audit opinion on assets, liabilities, revenues and 
expenses recognized in the financial statements. Such a transitional method also means that once transition is 
completed all entities are genuinely comparable, whereas the Board’s proposed method means comparability is likely 
to be unachievable. 

One recent example for the Board to consider of this preferred approach by standard setters (i.e. relating to guidance 
for issuers on disclosure of expected changes in accounting policies), is the Canadian Securities Administrators 
issued CSA Staff Notice 52-320 in 2008. This provided guidance for the disclosures required in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) with respect to anticipated effects of the changeover to IFRS on an issuer’s 
statements that would only take place three years later in 2011.  

This CSA notice applied to each financial reporting period in the three years prior to the enterprises changeover to 
IFRS. This approach allowed disclosure on the run-up to conversion, rather than piece-meal transitional standard 
adoption currently proposed by the Board.  

Alternative Transitional Approach   

As an ‘alternative transitional approach’ we believe it may be possible to include the exemptions noted in the ED that 
affect fair presentation and compliance with accrual basis IPSASs during the period of transition (paragraphs 25 to 
60). However, we would not require a three year transition period upon reporting entities wanting to transition to 
IPSAS. Instead we would leave the date of full IPSAS compliance up to the Public Sector entity preparing the financial 
statements, but to a maximum five year transition relief period, permitting a shorter period to be adopted.   

This alternative approach would result in a set date for full compliance to IPSAS, and encourages adoption of IPSAS, 
but allows entities to report on the suite of IPSAS standards chosen for adoption by them over a longer period than is 
currently suggested. This piece-meal transition would present financial information on a disclosed accounting policy 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff is of the view that this 
should be determined and 
required by each 
jurisdiction. The ED does 
require disclosures on the 
progress made towards 
recognizing, measuring, 
presenting and disclosing 
items and transactions 
during the transitional 
period. Staff is of the view 
that any detailed disclosures 
will be too specific for 
inclusion in the IPSAS.  
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basis throughout the period of gradual IPSAS adoption. While potentially causing transparency issues both for users 
and auditors (hence it is not our preferred approach), it would allow momentum by preparers for accrual based IPSAS 
accounting policies. 

If either approach is adopted, we would strongly recommend the Exposure Draft should include a requirement to 
disclose: 

• a narrative description of the differences between the policies adopted during the transitional financial statements 
and the full requirements of IPSAS; 

• the entity’s action plan and timetable to adopt IPSAS fully; and 

• the changes made to the policies since the previous report.  

We would also recommend the IPSASB should work with the IAASB to develop a model audit report for reporting on 
transitional financial statements. 

Both our proposed approaches noted allow public sector entities to transition to IPSAS in a controlled way, but also 
allows a best-fit of framework conversion to the resources available to the specific entity. Either approach ensures the 
financial statements fully disclose the adjustments from the previous accounting frameworks, but without a three-year 
time limit imposition, which may not be appropriate given different global start-points and circumstances for 
conversion to full IPSASs. 

We believe that the proposed three year transition period has its challenges, as discussed above. We believe that a 
preferred approach for both users and preparers of first-time IPSAS financial statements would be to have up to five 
years of transitional relief, but the choice of determining transition date should be open, and that once an entity moves 
onto the IPSAS framework it must ensure that it is able to state a full compliance with accrual based IPSAS.  

However, given the desire to move Public Sector entities towards IPSAS as a reporting framework, an alternative 
approach would be to leave the date of full IPSAS compliance up to the Public Sector entity preparing the financial 
statements, but within a maximum allowed relief window of five years.  

 

 

 

 

 

Noted. Disclosures on the 
action plan and timetable 
are already required in the 
ED. The other two 
requirements are too 
specific and staff is of the 
view that it would not be 
feasible to include such 
detailed disclosures in the 
financial statements.   

 

Developing a model audit 
report is not within the 
IPSASB’s mandate.   

 

016 A We agree with the proposed three years relief period for the recognition of assets and liabilities by entities. Based on 
experience with developing countries strategic plans for IPSAS adoption, much longer period or years are required for 
such transition to allow Governments adequate time to be able to fully adopt the Standards. This is usually planned 
for a five year period.  

One of the key areas of challenge has been on property plant and equipment. This has been a challenging exercise 
for most entities. The period of time usually required in compiling the assets coupled with the fact that most of the 
information may not be available at the time of first adoption is a challenge for most developing countries and those 
adopting accrual IPSAS for the first time.  

Support for the three year 
transitional relief period 
noted.  
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Our view is that despite these challenges the 3-year transition period for recognition of assets/liabilities is sufficient. 
The 3-year relief period starts at the date of adoption of IPSAS and governments may start taking action well beyond 
the date of adoption of IPSAS. The Government of Ghana, for instance is implementing an Integrated Financial 
Management Information System (IFMIS) which would assist Ministries, Departments and Agencies provide timely, 
accurate, and consistent data for management and budget decision-making as well as facilitate financial statements 
preparation. We are of the view that when the project tenure is long, there is a possibility of loss in momentum leading 
to inefficiencies in the implementation. Allowing a longer relief period would in our view not provide a good incentive 
for governments to take pro-active actions regarding implementation. 

017 A We agree with a relief period of three years. 

We also recommend that IPSASB consider requiring a first-time adopter to develop a feasible plan for transitioning to 
the IPSASs within the three-year relief period. 

Support for the three year 
transitional relief period 
noted. 

Staff is of the view that 
including such a plan as 
part of the notes to the 
financial statements will be 
too detailed and will result in 
overly-complex financial 
statements.  

018 A We believe that a three year exemption period is adequate and should provide ample opportunity for most public 
sector bodies to deal with issues arising from the transition to IPSAS accruals. Three years is sufficient time to make 
the necessary changes including, obtaining historical cost information for assets and liabilities, the introduction of new 
systems and the compilation of comparative data. We do not support an extended time period. 

Support for the three year 
transitional relief period 
noted. 

019 A We feel the proposed relief period of three years is appropriate. The first time adoption of IPSAS, and accrual 
accounting, requires detailed guidance and adequate time. 

Support for the three year 
transitional relief period 
noted. 

020 A CIPFA agrees with a relief period of three years. 

We acknowledge that in practice, in some cases it may take longer to develop systems and staff resources. However, 
in our view it is important that the period for which entities can signal their intentions to adopt full IPSAS by publishing 
‘transitional IPSAS financial statements’ should not be overly extended. 

Support for the three year 
transitional relief period 
noted. 

021 C The Cour des comptes understands that the transitional period have to be limited to a small number of years, but 
does not agree that it should be set by the IPSAS Board to three years, indiscriminately for all the public sector 
entities. Practice shows that the transitional period may be affected by exogenous factors such as challenges 

Noted. Comments on the 
proposed transitional period 
have been highlighted to the 
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due to new information systems developments, maintenance breakdowns  of old software or delays in data 
migrations towards new ERPs. Other delays may occur through recognition and value measurement of some 
specific assets or voluntary contributions, not forgetting significant areas where there is no existing IPSAS yet, 
such as social benefits. 

The duration of the transitional period should be best defined by each entity, according to, among others, its size, its 
complexity, its activities and its public services deliveries. 

IPSASB for its 
consideration. 

Staff is, however, of the 
view that the transitional 
period should not be 
determined by each entity 
adopting accrual basis 
IPSASs as this would result 
in inconsistency and 
comparability between 
entities will be impaired. 

022 A We believe that a three year exemption period is appropriate and should provide an adequate length of time for most 
public sector bodies to adequately deal with the issues arising from the transition to accruals accounting. 

A three-year exemption period should, in our view, permit first-time adopters to implement systems and obtain 
information sufficient for them to produce financial statements complying with the accruals IPSASs including the 
provision of comparative information. We presume that bodies planning to make the move to accruals accounting 
would have started the necessary preliminary work well in advance of preparing their first set of transitional IPSAS 
financial statements. Additionally, any issues with, for example, obtaining historical cost information for assets and 
liabilities held for a long time by the bodies are unlikely to be resolved by any reasonable extension of the exemption 
period.  For these reasons, we do not support any further extension of the three-year exemption period. 

Support for the three year 
transitional relief period 
noted. 

023 B We believe a relief period of five years is more appropriate, as provided by the transitional provision in IPSAS 17 
Property, Plant and Equipment. BC37 of the ED states that the IPSASB allows a three year grace period to encourage 
entities to prepare for the adoption of IPSAS in advance of preparation of their transitional IPSAS financial statements, 
or their first IPSAS financial statements. Due to the challenges faced by developing and under-developed countries 
highlighted earlier, as well as incomplete information of assets and liabilities and the voluminous data involved, the 
relief period of five years is very essential. Further, for jurisdictions with high public debts over its gross domestic 
product (GDP) ratio, moving to accrual accounting is very critical and would require early adoption of the accounting 
standards before they can prepare their first accrual-based financial statements. 

Noted. Comments on the 
proposed transitional period 
have been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration. 

024 B I have doubt in relation the period, because recognition and/or measurement for public sector of specific assets and/or 
liabilities is very complex, for this time I understand that the internal control needs to have more high quality that its 
results in more transparency. In relation this point is very important the IFAC observers in countries and receive the 
results of difficulties for this process.  

Noted. Comments on the 
proposed transitional period 
have been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration. 
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025  No comment in SMC3.   

COMMENTS ON SPECIFIC PRINCIPLES IN EXPOSURE DRAFT 

R# 
RESPONDENT COMMENTS 

COMMENTS ON SPECIFIC PRINCIPLES IN EXPOSURE DRAFT 
STAFF COMMENTS 

 Scope (paragraphs 2 to 6)  

004 Paragraph 2 of the Exposure Draft indicates a public sector entity should apply this standard “… when it prepares and presents 
its annual financial statements on the adoption of, and during the transition to, accrual basis IPSASs.” 

Paragraphs BC5 and BC6 further describe the purpose of this standard on a going forward basis indicating when the IPSASB 
issues a new pronouncement, it will develop transitional provisions for the adoption of that pronouncement and include them in 
this first-time standard. Other IPSASs in the future will only prescribe transitional provisions that deal with changes in the 
respective IPSAS once it is applied.  

Therefore, going forward when a new IPSAS is issued and is to be implemented, a public sector entity already following IPSASs 
accrual will need to refer to the first-time standard for the transitional provisions.  This is not consistent with paragraph 2 of the 
Exposure Draft. 

Noted. The Basis for 
Conclusions will be 
clarified to explain  that 
when new 
pronouncements are 
issued, this 
pronouncement will be 
updated to specifically 
develop transitional 
provisions for the first-time 
adoption on IPSASs. 
However, transitional 
provisions will still be 
included in the new 
pronouncement issued to 
address transitional 
matters specifically related 
to that pronouncement. 
Staff has highlighted the 
matter to the IPSASB for 
its consideration.   

 Definitions  

 Date of adoption of IPSASs  
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010 The date of adoption is defined as the date an entity adopts accrual basis IPSASs for the first time, and is the beginning of the 
earliest period for which the first-time adopter presents its first transitional IPSAS financial statements or its first IPSAS financial 
statements. In reading this definition, the phrase “beginning of the earliest period for which an entity presents its first transitional 
IPSAS financial statements” could be interpreted to include the beginning of the comparative period where a first-time adopter 
has elected to present comparative information. While this is accurate, it may effectively reduce the relief period granted to 
entities if they prepare comparative information. For example: An entity takes advantage of the three year relief period for the 
recognition of assets, but elects to prepare comparative information, the three year relief period runs from the date of adoption, 
which is the beginning of the comparative and not the beginning of the year in which the entity announces its intention to adopt 
IPSASs. This effectively means that the entity only has a two year relief period, and not three.  

To ensure that entities are given the full benefit of the relief period allowed, we propose that the phrase “beginning of the earliest 
period” should be amended to “start of the financial year in which the first-time adopter elects to adopt accrual basis IPSASs”. 

Agree. The definition has 
been amended as 
proposed.  

 First IPSAS financial statements  

020 In paragraph 7, the definition of ‘First IPSAS financial statements’ refers to ‘other IPSAS’ when it appears to mean ‘those 
IPSAS’. After correcting this, the definition would still be difficult to understand when drafted as a single sentence. 

Suggested redraft 

First IPSAS financial statements are the first annual financial statements in which an entity complies with the accrual 
basis IPSASs and can make an explicit and unreserved statement of compliance with other those IPSASs. The entity 
may have because it adopted one or more of the transitional exemptions in this IPSAS that do not impact the fair 
presentation of the financial statements and its on the entity’s ability to assert compliance with accrual basis IPSASs. 

Noted. However amending 
the second part of the 
definition is amended as 
suggested, reference to 
the financial statements 
“not fairly presenting” will 
be lost. Only the first part 
of the suggested wording 
will be used to clarify the 
definition.    

020 In paragraph 7, the definition of ‘Period of transition’ is unclear and might be misread as implying that compliance with IPSASs is 
achieved by making a statement of compliance. 

Suggested redrafts 

Either: 

Period of transition is the period during which a first-time adopter applies one or more of the exemptions in this IPSAS 
before it complies with the accrual basis IPSASs by an explicit and unreserved statement of such compliance with 
IPSASs. 

Or: 

Noted. The second 
editorial proposal seems to 
be sufficient to clarify the 
definition.   
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Period of transition is the period during which a first-time adopter applies one or more of the exemptions in this IPSAS 
before it complies with the accrual basis IPSASs, and before it is able to make by an explicit and unreserved statement 
of such compliance with IPSASs. 

 Previous basis of accounting  

020 Paragraph 10 characterises the ‘previous basis of accounting’ in terms of ‘the cash basis of accounting’ or ‘the accrual basis of 
accounting’.  

This is potentially confusing, because ‘basis of accounting’ is being used in a narrow sense to refer to a specific GAAP or 
regulated framework, and is used in this way throughout the proposed IPSAS. In contrast the references to ‘the cash basis of 
accounting’ and ‘the accruals basis of accounting’ are normally used to refer to a range of possible GAAPs or frameworks. It 
would be clearer to refer to specific examples of such frameworks as ‘a cash basis of accounting’ or ‘an accruals basis of 
accounting’ respectively. 

It is particularly important to be clear that there is not a single ‘accrual basis of accounting’, in order for subsequent discussions 
of the transition to accrual IPSAS from the previous basis of accounting to make sense. 

Suggested redraft 

The previous basis of accounting is the basis of accounting that a first-time adopter used immediately before adopting accrual 
basis IPSASs. This might which can either be athe cash basis of accounting or the an accrual basis of accounting. The first-time 
adopter may also have applied, or a modified version of either the a cash basis or the an accrual basis of accounting, or 
prescribed requirements. 

Noted. The words “a” 
and/or “an” will rather be 
used in reference to the 
cash or accrual basis.  

 Transitional IPSAS Financial Statements  

015 Paragraph 25 indicates that the exemptions ‘will affect fair presentation until the exemptions that provided the relief have 
expired and/or when the relevant items are recognized and/or measured in accordance with the applicable IPSAS (whichever is 
earlier).’  It would perhaps be more appropriate to state ‘when the relevant items are recognized and/or measured in accordance 
with the applicable IPSAS’ since preparers will have recognized the items when the exemption has expired.  The same wording 
is used in paragraphs 8, 11, 28, 31, 36, 41, 42, 43, 54, 55, 56, 57. 

 

Agree. Paragaph 11 (and 
any other relvant 
paragraph) will be revised 
to explain that only when 
the entity’s financial 
statement comply with all 
the requirments in all the 
IPSASs will it be able to 
make an explicit and 
unreserved statement of 
such compliance.       
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020 Paragraph 11 seems to incorrectly imply that the expiration of exemptions is a sufficient condition to allow an entity to make an 
unreserved declaration of compliance. It needs to be redrafted to make it clear that the declaration of accrual IPSAS compliance 
needs to reflect actual compliance.  

The expiration of the exemption period is only relevant insofar as it compels compliance with full IPSAS.  

A further point which we consider worth making is that in some cases the entity may achieve compliance in a particular reporting 
period because no transactions need to be recorded in line with a particular IPSAS, or no complex issues arise which are not 
straightforwardly dealt with by existing systems. Under these circumstances, fair presentation might be achieved, but the entity 
should only claim full compliance with accrual IPSAS if it is confident that it will be able to comply in future years, which may 
necessitate further system development. 

We would note that similar wording is used in paragraph 8, but is unlikely to be misunderstood if the suggested changes are 
made to paragraph 11. 

Suggested redraft 

An entity’s transitional IPSAS financial statements are the annual financial statements in which an entity transitions to accrual 
basis IPSASs and adopts certain exemptions in this Standard that impact the fair presentation of the financial statements and its 
ability to assert compliance with accrual basis IPSASs. If a first-time adopter adopts the exemptions in this Standard that affect 
fair presentation and compliance with accrual basis IPSASs (see paragraphs 32–60), it will not be able to make an explicit and 
unreserved statement of compliance with other accrual basis IPSASs until the exemptions that provided the relief in this 
Standard have expired and/or when the relevant items are recognized, measured and/or the relevant information has been 
presented and/or disclosed in accordance with the applicable IPSASs (whichever is earlier). Once an entity has made an explicit 
and unreserved statement of compliance with accrual basis IPSASs, it cannot decide to apply or re-apply any of the transitional 
exemptions in this IPSAS. 

Agree. The paragraph will 
be revised to explain that 
only when the entity’s 
financial statement comply 
with all the requirments in 
all the IPSASs will it be 
able to make an explicit 
and unreserved statement 
of such compliance.  

020 We are somewhat confused by Paragraph 12 which indicates that: 

An entity’s transitional IPSAS financial statements are those financial statements, for example, where the entity transitions from 
another accounting basis such as when it: 

…… 

(ii) Presented its most recent previous financial statements: 

……. 

(ii) In conformity with IPSASs in all respects, except that the financial statements did not contain an explicit and unreserved 
statement that they complied with IPSASs; 

Agree. The matter has 
been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration.  
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It is not clear to us under what circumstances an entity which had fully complied with IPSAS except for providing a statement of 
compliance could not thereafter make such a statement in its next set of financial statements. Those financial statements would 
then be the ‘first IPSAS financial statements’ rather than the ‘transitional IPSAS financial statements’.  

For similar reasons, it is not clear to us why the previous financial statements would not be designated as ‘transitional IPSAS 
financial statements’. 

 Exceptions to retrospective application of IPSASs 

Estimates 

 

004 While mentioned in paragraph IG11, paragraph 21 should also indicate a first-time adopter’s estimates at the date of adoption 
should be consistent with estimates made in accordance with the previous basis of accounting unless there is objective 
evidence that those estimates were inconsistent with the requirements in IPSASs or were made in error. 

Agree. The paragraph will 
be amended as proposed. 

 Exemptions that affect fair presentation and compliance with accrual basis IPSASs  

 Three year transitional relief period for the recognition and/or measurement of assets and/or liabilities  

004 Paragraph 36 indicates “… a first-time adopter shall only change its accounting policies during the period of transition to better 
conform to the accounting policies in accrual basis IPSASs …”. Why should a public sector entity not change its accounting 
policies during the period of transition when it results in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant information 
consistent with IPSAS 3? 

Noted. The ED does allow 
a first-time adopter to 
change its accounting 
policy during the period of 
transition to better conform 
its accounting policy 
relating to non-exchange 
revenue.  

Staff is of the view that 
similar relief should be 
provided to the recognition 
and/or measurement of 
assets. The matter has 
been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration 

010 Where an entity makes use of the three year transitional relief for the recognition and/or measurement of non-exchange Noted. Staff is of the view 
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revenue, paragraph 40 allows a first-time adopter to change its accounting policy on a class-by-class basis. The specific 
reference to the change in accounting policy on a class-by-class basis is however not specified in the transitional exemptions for 
assets such as property, plant and equipment or intangible assets. To encourage a first-time adopter to comply with the 
requirements in all the applicable IPSASs as soon as possible, we propose that the IPSASB also allow a first-time adopter to 
change its accounting policy on a class-by-class basis in respect of the recognition of assets, such a as property, plant and 
equipment, intangible assets, biological and other assets. 

We therefore recommend that the IPSASB analyse which assets (and/or liabilities) can be recognised/measured on a class by 
class basis, and amend relevant paragraphs in each of these sections. 

that the three year relief 
period should be applied to 
the recognition and/or 
measurement of assets on 
a class by class basis. The 
matter has been 
highlighted to the IPSASB 
for its consideration. 

015 In paragraph 32 it is not clear whether a first-time adopter will be allowed to apply the transition rules to assets or asset 
categories. Will a first-time adopter be able to recognize specific assets through the transitional period in different ways (e.g. 
combining old non-IPSAS framework rules and, for example, IPSAS 17)? It would be helpful for the Board to make clear 
whether the requirements of paragraph 32 can be applied to specific assets or to asset categories (such as land, buildings, plant 
and equipment etc) or to the assets listed in paragraph 32 (a) to (g).  

Noted. Staff is of the view 
that the three year relief 
period should be applied to 
the recognition and/or 
measurement of assets on 
a class by class basi. The 
matter has been 
highlighted to the IPSASB 
for its consideration. 

 Non-compliance after three year transitional relief period  

005 The Exposure Draft has not addressed what will happen if an entity announces that it is adopting IPSASs and yet fairs to be fully  
compliant within the three year period. Could such entities assert they are still transitionaing or would no assertion be made? 

We are unsure as to what will happen if an entity announces that it is adopting IPSASs and yet fails to be fully compliant within 
the three year period. 

Noted. If an entity at the 
end of the transitional 
period do not comply in full 
with all the applicable 
IPSASs it cannot make an 
explicit and unreserved 
statement about such 
compliance as required in 
IPSAS 1. Staff proposes 
that some clarification 
should be provided in 
paragraph 11 around this.  

006 The Council is of the view that, irrespective of the choice for the temporary exemptions that affect fair presentation and 
compliance with accrual basis IPSASs during the transition period, the financial statements should still be allowed to be 

Noted. If an entity at the 
end of the transitional 
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assessed as compliant to IPSASs at the end of the transition period. period do not comply in full 
with all the applicable 
IPSASs it cannot make an 
explicit and unreserved 
statement about such 
compliance as required in 
IPSAS 1. Staff proposes 
that some clarification 
should be provided in 
paragraph 11 around this. 

007 Regarding the three-year transition period, the AASB is also concerned that the ED does not address the position of a first-time 
adopter that fails to transition fully to accrual basis IPSASs within the three-year period. Would such entities still be able to 
continue to assert that they are in transition? Would a further three-year window be available in the future? Would disclosures 
need to be made? If entities could still assert that they are in transition, this has the potential to reduce the incentive to transition 
fully within the given time frame.  If not, the concerns we express above may be the issue. The AASB recommends that this 
issue be addressed in the final IPSAS. 

Noted. If an entity at the 
end of the transitional 
period do not comply in full 
with all the applicable 
IPSASs it cannot make an 
explicit and unreserved 
statement about such 
compliance as required in 
IPSAS 1. Staff proposes 
that some clarification 
should be provided in 
paragraph 11 around this. 

 Transitional relief for recognition of inventory  

010 Paragraph 32 allows a first-time adopter to elect a three year transitional relief period for the recognition and/or measurement of 
certain assets and/or liabilities. Relief is however not considered for the recognition and/or measurement of inventory as defined 
in IPSAS 12 Inventory.   

Even though inventory is a current asset which is realised, consumed, sold or used in an entity’s operating cycle (normally 
twelve months), an entity adopting accrual basis IPSASs for the first-time may need time to identify and classify its assets 
appropriately between inventory, investment property or property, plant and equipment. For example: A first-time adopter may, 
on the adoption of accrual basis IPSASs identify that it has land under its control. In classifying the land appropriately in terms of 
accrual basis IPSASs, a first-time adopter may need time to determine the reason for having or holding this land before it can 
classify the land as either property, plant or equipment, or as inventory (ie land held for sale). Likewise, a first-time adopter may 
need time to appropriately classify spare parts as either property, plant or equipment, or inventory. A first-time adopter may also 

Agree. The proposal will 
be highlighted to the 
IPSAS for its 
consideration.  
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need some time to determine the valuation of its inventory under the first-in, first-out (FIFO), or weighted average cost formula. 

We therefore propose that a three year transitional relief period should also be provided for the initial recognition and/or 
measurement of inventory.        

023 Paragraph 32 states that a first-time adopter is not required to recognise certain assets and/or liabilities during the transition 
period. We recommend that similar exemption is made available for inventory. For the Malaysian government, its inventories 
mainly comprise of inventories held for defence purpose and medical supplies. Due to its highly specialized nature (of the 
defence inventories) and the high volume of these items, it would require longer time and additional effort to recognize these 
assets in the financial statements. Such longer time is required to put in place proper control and procedures in the inventory 
system.    

Agree. The proposal will 
be highlighted to the 
IPSAS for its consideration 

 Application of the accounting policy in respect of measurement of certain assets and/or liabilities  

010 We agree with the three year transitional relief provided in paragraph 34 for the measurement of assets and/or liabilities where a 
first-time adopter has recognised assets under its previous basis of accounting. We also support the proposal in paragraph 36 
that requires a first-time adopter to only change its accounting policy during the period of transition to better conform to the 
accounting policies in accrual basis IPSASs.   

If paragraph 34 is read in isolation, it is not clear that an entity can continue to apply its existing accounting policies or that when 
it does change these policies, it should only be to better conform to the requirements of IPSASs. We are therefore of the view 
that paragraphs 34 and 36 should be combined to make this principle clearer. The combined paragraph (paragraph 34 and 36) 
should make the following points clear:  

• An entity is not required to change its accounting policies for a period of three years following the adoption of IPSASs.  

• As a result of the relief provided, an entity may continue to apply its previous accounting policies in respect of the 
recognition and measurement of assets and liabilities.  

• An entity may only change its existing accounting policies to align them with the requirements of IPSASs.   

Having considered the amendments to paragraph 34 and 36 outlined above, the need to paragraph 35 should be reconsidered. 

Agree. The paragraphs will 
be amended and 
combined to explain the 
principle.  

 Recognition and/or measurement of non-exchange revenue  

010 As with the proposal above to combine the principles in paragraphs 34 and 36, we propose that a similar amendment should be 
made to paragraphs 38 and 40.  

Agree. The paragraph will 
be amended to clarify the 
principle.  
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 IPSAS 5 Borrowing Costs  

007 The AASB queries the transition provisions for IPSAS 5 Borrowing Costs. The ED proposes that when a first-time adopter elects 
to account for borrowing costs using the allowed alternative treatment (capitalisation rather than expensing) it is not required to 
capitalise borrowing costs until the three-year relief period for recognising and/or measuring assets has expired and/or the 
relevant assets are recognised and/or measured in accordance with the applicable IPSAS whichever is earlier (paragraphs 42-
43). However, the proposals do not preclude an entity from capitalising its borrowing costs before the asset is recognised and/or 
measured. This approach could result in only the borrowing costs, and not the relevant asset, being recognised in the financial 
statements. 

Therefore, the AASB suggests clarifying that borrowing costs should only be capitalised in relation to a recognised qualifying 
asset. 

Agree. The requirement 
relating to the 
capitalization of borrowing 
costs will be clarified.  

 IPSAS 6, 7 and 8  

 General comment  

004 It is not clear whether the exemptions in paragraph 44 to 53, for example, can be adopted incrementally by a public sector 
entity. This could be clarified. 

Agreed. The relationship 
between the adoption of 
transitional exemptions for 
IPSAS 6, 7 and 8 will be 
clarified in the 
Implementation Guidance.  

 IPSAS 6 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements  

 Initial classification and identification of a first-time adopter’s interest in another entity  

006 Scope of consolidated financial statements: the Council notes that there is no exemption for identifying all the subsidiaries that 
should be consolidated. The Council therefore understands that the scope of consolidated financial statements should be 
defined on the date of adoption. The Council thinks that a relief that would allow for a progressive identification of the controlled 
entities during the transition period is needed. 

The Council is of the view that, should the IPSAS Board finalise the standard using the requirements as proposed in the ED, 
practical difficulties could arise upon implementation of the standard due to a lack of relief with respect to the identification of 
controlled entities: an additional exemption should be introduced to allow a progressive timeline to identify controlled entities. 

Agree. Staff is of the view 
that a relief period should 
also be provided for the 
identification and 
appropriate classification 
of interests in other 
entities. The proposal will 
be highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
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consideration.  

010 The transitional exemptions in paragraphs 44 to 46 allow a first-time adopter to not to eliminate all balances, transactions, 
revenue and expenses between entities within the economic entity for reporting periods beginning on a date within three years 
following the date of adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. Likewise, paragraphs 47 to 49 and paragraphs 50 to 53 allow an 
investor and a venturer not to eliminate its share in the associate’s surplus of deficit or balances and transactions between 
entities that are jointly controlled for a period of three years following the adoption of accrual basis IPSASs.  

We are of the view that the extent of the relief provided to entities for the preparation of consolidated financial statements is 
insufficient. We have identified two areas where we believe further relief can be provided.  

Entities are allowed a period of three years to recognise and/or measure financial instruments. This means that an entity 
potentially has three years to assess what investments it holds in other entities, and how they should be classified and 
measured. If entities are allowed a period of three years to assess what investments it holds in other entities, it may not be 
possible to prepare consolidated financial statements from the date of adoption as the first-time adopter may not yet have 
determined which entities it controls.  

Agree. Staff is of the view 
that a relief period should 
also be provided for the 
identification and 
appropriate classification 
of interests in other 
entities. The proposal will 
be highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration. 

 

 

 Exemption to not prepare consolidated financial statements for interests in other entities  

005 We agree with the proposed transitional exemptions that the IPSASB considers would not affect the fair presentation of a first-
time adopter’s financial statements. We query the usefulness of publishing incomplete financial statements and have concerns 
on the impact of the exemptions that affect fair presentation and compliance on the public’s perception of the quality of IPSASs. 
For example, we consider that the proposal not to require elimination of inter-entity balances and transactions in the 
consolidated financial statements of the controlling entity would lead to the consolidated financial statements of the controlling 
entity being overstated. Although an entity making use of this provision would not be able to assert full compliance with IPSASs, 
we query the usefulness of such information. 

Noted. The IPSASB 
acknowledged that 
allowing a first-time 
adopter to apply certain 
transitional exemptions or 
provisions during the 
period of transition to 
accrual accounting, may 
impair the usefulness of 
information duiring the 
period of transition. 
However, in promoting the 
adoption of accrual basis 
IPSASs, this will be 
acceptable to the extent 
that a first-time adopter 
takes advantage of the 
transitional exemptions or 
provisions in this IPSAS. 
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The ED requires specific 
disclosures to explain the 
transition to accrual basis 
IPSASs.  
Staff is of the view that 
relief should be provided 
from the preparation of 
consolidated financial 
statements until such time 
as inter-entity balances, 
transactions, revenue and 
expenses can be 
eliminated. The proposal 
will be highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration. 

010 Paragraph 44 requires a first-time adopter to present consolidated financial statements following the date of adoption of accrual 
basis IPSASs. There may be first time adopters who are not in a position to eliminate any inter-entity transactions, balances, 
revenues or expenses at all. In these instances, presenting consolidated financial statements will not provide reliable and 
relevant information to the users of the financial statements as the consolidation is merely an aggregation of line items. In our 
view, this set of financial statements will not meet the qualitative characteristics and objectives of financial statements as set in 
the Conceptual Framework.  

In some instances, a first-time adopter may not have all the information to present consolidated financial statements following 
the date of adoption. We therefore propose that some relief be provided to a first-time adopter when (a) it applies the three year 
relief period for the recognition and/or measurement of financial instruments, and (b) it cannot eliminate any inter-entity 
transactions. 

We therefore recommend that in these instances, relief should be provided from the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements until such time as some inter-entity transactions, balances, revenues and expenses can be eliminated.  

Agree. Staff is of the view 
that relief should be 
provided from the 
preparation of consolidated 
financial statements until 
such time as inter-entity 
balances, transactions, 
revenue and expenses can 
be eliminated. The 
proposal will be highlighted 
to the IPSASB for its 
consideration. 

011 We have identified the following subjects requiring specific relief during the period of transition to IPSASs. 

The definition of the scope of consolidation: this subject is not mentioned in the Exposure Draft. There are very few States that 
currently publish consolidated financial statements. To the extent that it is already complicated enough to prepare IPSAS-
compliant separate financial statements for the transition period, we believe it is neither relevant nor feasible to prepare IPSAS-
compliant consolidated financial statements for the same period. The two exercises cannot be carried out in parallel for the 

Noted. Staff proposes that 
some relief should be 
provided in preparing 
consolidated financial 
statements where a first-
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transition period. Moreover, the consolidation project has not yet been finalised. time adopter has elected to 
adopted the transitional 
exemption eliminate 
balances, transactions, 
revenue and expenses can 
be eliminated. The 
proposal will be highlighted 
to the IPSASB for its 
consideration. 

023 The following paragraphs in ED53 provide transitional exemptions in relation to IPSAS 6, 7 and 8: 

• Paragraph 44 states that a first-time adopter is not required to eliminate all balances, transactions, revenue and expenses 
between entities within the economic entity during the transition period. 

• Paragraph 47 states that a first-time adopter applying the equity method of IPSAS 7, the investor is not required to 
eliminate its share in the associate’s surplus and deficit resulting from upstream and downstream transactions between the 
investor and the associate during the transition period. 

• Paragraph 50 states that a first-time adopter applying the proportionate consolidation treatment of IPSAS 8, a venture is 
not required to eliminate all balances and transactions between itself and entities that are jointly controlled for reporting 
periods during the transition period. 

We agree with the above transitional exemptions in relation to the preparation of consolidated financial statements. However, 
we strongly believe that a transitional exemption on preparing consolidated financial statements is critical and should be made 
available to the constituents. This is based on the experience of a number of jurisdictions that have produced consolidated 
financial statements. For instance, the United Kingdom (“UK”) took almost ten years to produce its first consolidated financial 
statements after it published its first central government financial statements. The UK published its first audited central 
government accounts prepared on accrual basis for the financial year ended 31 March 2000. It only published its first Whole of 
Government Accounts (“WGA”), a consolidated set of financial statements for the UK public sector for the 2009-2010 financial 
year. WGA consolidates around 1,500 bodies including central government departments, local authorities, devolved 
administrations, the health service and public corporations.  

Many developing and under-developed countries will be moving from cash to accrual accounting in the next five years. The PwC 
Global Survey on Accounting and Financial Reporting by Central Governments highlighted that the move towards accrual 
accounting will take place majorly in Africa, Latin America and the Caribbean, and Asia. The survey also highlighted that the 
lack of trained staff and IT system requirements are the main challenges of accrual accounting conversion. These challenges as 
well as complexity of consolidation process would require longer time for the developing and under-developed countries to 

Noted. Staff is of the view 
that a relief period should 
also be provided for the 
the preparation of 
consolidated financial 
statements where a first-
time adopter has taken 
advantage of certain 
transitional exemptions to 
not recognize and/or 
measure assets and/or 
liabilities for during the 
transitional period. Staff is 
further of the view that 
relief should be provided 
from the preparation of 
consolidated financial 
statements until such time 
as inter-entity balances, 
transactions, revenue and 
expenses can be 
eliminated. 

The proposal will be 
highlighted to the IPSASB 
for its consideration. 

Noted. As the IPSASB has 
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produce consolidated financial statements. 

We also wish to recommend the IPSASB to perform a jurisdiction review to determine the appropriate transitional relief period 
for not preparing consolidated financial statements. 

agreed that a three year 
relief period should 
consistently be applid to all 
assets and liabiliites, staff 
propose that a relief period 
of three years should be 
considered.  

 Transitional relief relating to an investment entity  

010 The IPSASB’s Exposure Draft on Consolidated Financial Statements (ED 49) introduced investment entities as part of the 
IPSASB Exposure Drafts that deal with Interests in Other Entities (EDs 48 to 52). 

Even though the IPSASB has acknowledged in this Exposure Draft (ED 53) that it would reconsider the transitional exemptions 
once comment on the proposed IPSASs on Interests in Other Entities (EDs 48 to 52) are considered, we urge the IPSASB to 
develop transitional provisions for the initial recognition of an investment entity on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. 

Noted. Staff is of the view 
that this is not within the 
scope of this project and 
should be considered once 
EDs 48 to ED 52 is 
finalized.  

 Paragraph 44  

008 CFC Brazil records that see problems in paragraph 44, which states that the consolidation of the balance sheet is not required 
that the first-time adopter of accrual basis delete all transactions, receipts and intra expenses during this period of three years. 

Noted. However, the 
wording current IPSAS 6 
has been used. Subject to 
the IPSASB’s decision on 
ED 48 to ED 52, the 
wording may be amended.  

 IPSAS 7 Investments in Associates  

010 As mentioned above, we acknowledge the fact that the IPSASB will reconsider the provisions in this Exposure Draft once the 
IPSASB has considered the comment received on the Exposure Drafts on Interest in Other Entities (ED 48-52). Because there 
is a single proposed Standard that deals with the accounting of a joint venture and associate, (ie ED 50 on Interest in Associates 
and Joint Ventures) we propose that transitional exemptions for IPSAS 7 and IPSAS 8, as included in this Exposure Draft, 
should be combined. 

We would also like to point out that the terminology used in the transitional exemptions for IPSAS 7 and IPSAS 8 should be 
aligned with that used in Exposure Draft 50. 

In addition, the transitional exemptions in paragraphs 50 and 51 should be reconsidered if the proposal to eliminate the 

Agree. Subject to the 
IPSASB’s approval of EDs 
48 to 52 the consequential 
amendments impacting the 
proposed pronouncement 
will be affected.  
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proportionate consolidation treatment in ED 50 on Interest in Associates and Joint Ventures and ED 51 on Joint Arrangements 
is incorporated into the new pronouncements. 

 IPSAS 13 Leases  

010 We propose that paragraph 54, as well as the related grey letter paragraph 55, should be clarified to explain that the exemption 
applies to the recognition of a finance lease asset, and a finance lease liability. At present, the grey letter paragraph only 
mentions finance lease assets, which is inconsistent with paragraph 54. We also recommend that this clarification should be 
made to the applicable Basis for Conclusions and Implementation Guidance paragraphs.  

If paragraph 54 is amended as proposed, then paragraph 58 should be expanded to require that a first-time adopter disclose the 
information required by IPSAS 13 for those finance lease liabilities that exist at the date of adoption. This will ensure that users 
have sufficient information about finance lease liabilities that exist. 

Agree. Staff agrees that 
the paragraphs, Basis for 
Conclusions and 
Implementation Guidance 
should be clarified to refer 
to finance lease assets 
and finance lease 
liabilities.  

Agree. Staff agrees with 
the clarification of the 
disclosure requirements as 
proposed.  

015 Paragraph 54 states: ‘Where a first time adopter takes advantage of the exemption in paragraph 32… it is not required to apply 
the requirements related to finance leases...’.  

However, when reading paragraph 55, reference is only made to assets. Requirements relating to a finance lease relate to both 
the asset and the related liability. Therefore, paragraph 55 should be drafted such that it also includes liabilities relating to 
leased assets. 

Agree. Staff agrees that 
the paragraphs, Basis for 
Conclusions and 
Implementation Guidance 
should be clarified to refer 
to finance lease assets 
and finance lease 
liabilities.  

 IPSAS 20 Related Party Disclosures  

010 Even though we support the three year transitional exemption allowed for the disclosure of related party relationships and 
related party transactions, we question the exemption relating to the disclosure of information about key management. 

Information about the remuneration of, and loans granted to, key management should be available to a first-time adopter, 
irrespective of the previous basis of accounting that was applied.  

We propose that the exemption for IPSAS 20 should be limited to the disclosure of related party relationships and related party 
transactions for the reason explained in the previous paragraph. 

Noted. Staff agrees that 
the disclosure requirement 
should be limited to related 
party relationships and 
related party transactions. 
The matter has been 
highlighted to the IPSASB 
for its consideration.  
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 Exemptions that do not affect fair presentation and compliance with accrual basis IPSASs  

 Deemed cost  

011 DGFiP agrees with the IPSAS Board’s approach in respect of deemed cost. When acquisition cost cannot be determined 
reliably, the ED proposes the use of deemed cost (market value, reconstructed cost, depreciated replacement cost). The 
acquisition cost is therefore intended to remain unchanged both during the transition period and at the end of that period, unlike 
the reporting date valuation. 

The same pragmatic approach was adopted in France for the measurement of assets in the Central Government’s 
opening balance sheet in 2006. Assets for which no reliable purchase cost could be determined have been recognised at 
estimated cost. Thus, non-specialised property have been accounted at market value. Similarly, other tangible assets, not 
previously recognised due to particular circumstances, are measured at market value on initial recognition or at replacement 
cost where market value cannot be determined. In the same way, identified but unrecognised Central Government heritage 
assets are included in the balance sheet for a symbolic or fixed non-revisable amount 

The support for the 
application of the deemed 
cost is noted.  

015 Paragraph 7 of the Exposure Draft defines deemed cost as ‘an amount used as a surrogate for acquisition cost or depreciated 
cost at a given date.’  Paragraph 64 goes on to state that a first time adopter may elect to use fair value as deemed cost when 
reliable cost information about the asset is not available, for various assets including property, plant and equipment.  

We believe the ability only to use fair value as deemed cost when reliable cost information is unavailable, is too restrictive and 
does not align with the available options as outlined under IFRS 1. The option to use fair value as deemed cost should be a 
choice made available to entities undergoing transition to IPSAS rather than having to prove the burden of unavailable 
information. 

Noted. The IPSASB 
considered the 
circumstances under which 
a first-time adopter should 
be allowed to determine 
deemed cost. In BC69 
IPSASB agreed that, to 
avoid the selective 
valuation of assets, the 
use of a deemed cost 
should be restricted to 
those circumstances 
where reliable cost 
information about the 
historical cost of the asset 
is not available. 

 Using deemed cost to measure assets  

 Application of deemed cost  
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010 The first sentence in paragraph 65 states that deemed cost can only be used where the acquisition cost of the asset is not 
available. The second sentence in this paragraph states that deemed cost assumes that the entity had initially recognised the 
asset or liability at the given date. This implies that the first-time adopter had cost information about the asset on the date of 
adoption. This sentence contradicts the IPSASB’s conclusion in BC 69 which explains that the use of deemed cost should be 
restricted to those circumstances where reliable cost information about the historical cost of the asset is not available. We 
therefore propose that the second sentence should be deleted.  

In addition, the wording in the first sentence of paragraph 65 should also be clarified to explain when deemed cost may be 
determined as concluded in BC69. 

Agreed. Paragraph 65 will 
be clarified to align the 
requirement with the 
conclusion in BC69 as 
proposed.  

 Measurement alternatives  

023 Paragraph 70 also states that where evidence of fair value is not available then alternate measurement of current replacement 
cost or depreciated cost is available, but this paragraph only applies for inventory and investment property – not property, plant 
and equipment.  

We would firstly question why is paragraph 70 only applicable to inventory and investment property? We would also note that 
IFRS 13 Appendix B8 notes that ‘the cost approach reflects the amount that would be required currently to replace the service 
capacity of an asset (often referred to as current replacement cost).’ As such the ability to use depreciated replacement cost 
should be allowed as a measurement of fair value for deemed cost use.  

Noted. IFRS 13 considers 
depreciated replacement 
cost differently from 
IPSASs, and because the 
IPSASB has not yet 
considered the application 
of IFRS 13 to the public 
sector, allowing 
depreciated replacement 
cost as a  measurement of 
fair value for deemed cost 
for inventory and 
investment property, may 
not be appropriate. 
Therefore, no amendment 
is proposed.  

 Using deemed cost to measure assets acquired through non-exchange transactions  

010 As with the explanatory guidance included in paragraph 65 that outlines when deemed cost may be used, we recommend that a 
similar explanation should be included as a grey letter paragraph to explain paragraph 72. As fair value is already prescribed for 
the measurement of assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction, the grey letter paragraph needs to make it clear that the 
exemptions relate to the timing when fair value is determined. An entity need not determine what the fair value was at the date 
the asset was acquired, but that fair value can be determined on the date of adoption of IPSASs. 

Agreed. A paragraph, 
similar to that in paragraph 
65, will be included to 
explain paragraph 72.  
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015 Paragraph 72, on deemed cost for non-exchange transactions, states: ‘A first time adopter may elect to measure an asset 
acquired through a non-exchange transaction at its fair value when reliable cost information about the asset is not available and 
use fair value as deemed cost.’  

It would be helpful if the IPSASB would confirm the date at which fair value should be recognised is either at the time that the 
non-exchange transaction occurred or at the date of the IPSAS adoption, or that could be a choice of the adopting entity 
between those dates, so long as the date is disclosed. 

Noted. A paragraph, 
similar to that in paragraph 
65, will be included to 
explain paragraph 72. 

 Measurement alternatives for interests in investments  

010 Paragraph 73 indicates that, where an entity elects to measure its investment in a controlled entity, joint ventures or associate at 
cost in its separate financial statements, it can determine “cost” using the guidance in IPSAS 6 (which is based on the purchase 
cost of the investment) or it can determine a deemed cost based on fair value as described in IPSAS 29.  

On initial adoption of accrual basis IPSASs, a first-time adopter may not have reliable cost information about the amount paid for 
the investments in controlled entities, jointly controlled entities and associates, and reliable market-based evidence of fair value 
may not be available to determine  deemed cost. For example, if a controlling entity has an interest in a controlled entity that 
does not have publicly traded equity and the fair value cannot be determined through valuation methods, it may be difficult to 
determine the value at which the controlling entity needs to recognise its investment on the date of adoption.  

Similar to the measurement alternatives that have been allowed for inventory and investment property in paragraph 70, we 
suggest that the IPSASB consider adding a measurement alternative to determine a deemed cost for its interests in other 
entities in the absence of reliable cost information. The net asset value of the investment may be an appropriate measurement 
alternative that could be considered. 

Noted. However, as there 
is no basis to use net asset 
value in existing IPSASs, 
staff is of the view that it 
may not be appropriate in 
determining fair value. 
Therefore, no amendment 
is proposed.  

 Comparative information  

004 Paragraphs 75 and BC21 of the Exposure Draft indicate this standard encourages a first-time adopter to present comparative 
information in its first set of financial statements. However, allowing a relief period provides a disincentive for a public sector 
entity to provide comparative information. 

The date of adoption of IPSASs is defined in paragraph 7 of the Exposure Draft as “…the date an entity adopts accrual basis 
IPSASs for the first time, and is the beginning of the earliest period for which the entity presents its first transitional IPSAS 
financial statements or its first IPSAS financial statements.” Paragraph IG24 recognizes the date of adoption will change 
depending on whether comparative information is provided indicating “The decision to present comparative information affects 
not only the extent of the information presented, but also the date of adoption of IPSASs.” 

For a public sector entity taking advantage of the three year relief period, providing comparative information in the first set of 

Noted. The intention was 
not that the relief period 
starts with the comparative 
year. Staff therefore 
proposes to include a 
paragraph to explain that 
the transitional exemptions 
only apply to information 
prepared in accordance 
with IPSASs and not to 
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IPSASs financial statements will result in the relief period expiring one year earlier than otherwise. The relief period starts with 
the comparative year. 

A public sector entity should be made aware of the implication of providing comparative information on the timing of the relief 
period. 

comparative information. 
The related Implmentation 
Guidance will also be 
clarified.  

007 The AASB is unsure whether paragraph 76 is proposing that comparative information be required for every line item, given the 
leniency in paragraph 75 to present no comparative information. The AASB considers this issue should be clarified in the final 
standard. 

Noted. Staff agrees that 
clarification should be 
provided that where 
comparative information is 
presented, it should be 
presented in accordance 
with the requirements in 
IPSAS 1. The matter has 
been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration.  

010 Paragraph 15 requires a first-time adopter to use the same accounting policies in its opening statement of financial position and 
throughout all periods presented. If a first-time adopter elects to include non-IPSAS comparative information in its first set of 
transitional financial statements, the requirement in paragraph 15 would effectively require a first-time adopter to amend its non-
IPSAS comparative information to be IPSAS compliant.  

Accordingly we propose that the scope paragraph of the Exposure Draft should explain that the transitional exemptions provided 
in this Exposure Draft only apply to information prepared in accordance with IPSASs.  

 

Agreed. Staff proposes the 
inclusion of a paragraph to 
explain that the transitional 
exemptions only apply to 
information prepared in 
accordance with IPSASs 
and not to non-IPSAS 
comparative information. 

015 Paragraph 75 states that ‘A first-time adopter is encouraged, but not required, to present comparative information.’  Paragraph 
80 also states that, ‘A first-time adopter may present comparative information in accordance with its previous basis of 
accounting. In any financial statements containing comparative information in accordance with the previous basis of accounting, 
the first-time adopter shall label the information prepared using the previous basis of accounting information as not being 
prepared in accordance with IPSASs, and disclose the nature of the main adjustments that would be required to comply with 
IPSAS.’ 

IPSAS 1 requires an entity to present comparative information in respect of the previous period, and our concern is that current 
and comparative information would not be comparable should two different accounting frameworks be presented.  

The inclusion of comparatives under different frameworks of standards is not likely to add value for the users of financial 

Noted. ED53.80 however 
allows a first-time adopter 
to present comparative 
information in accordance 
with its previous basis of 
accounting. The paragraph 
further requires the first-
time adopter to label the 
information prepared using 
the previous basis of 
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statements to base economic decisions upon. This will bring complexity to both the preparers and auditors of those financial 
statements. We would propose that comparative information is presented on a consistent basis with current period financial 
information. Our preferred alternative transition method noted above would address this issue, by having the date of transition 
being the beginning of the first comparative period presented in the financial statements. 

 

accounting information as 
not being prepared in 
accordance with IPSASs, 
and disclose the nature of 
the main adjustments that 
would be required to 
comply with IPSASs. 

The ED then also requires 
a first-time adopter to 
present a reconciliation to 
provide sufficient 
information to enable users 
to understand material 
adjustments to the opening 
statement of financial 
postion. 

Staff is of the view that 
these disclosures are 
sufficient and do not 
propose any amendments.  

 Requirement to present one or two statements of financial position, two statements of financial performance, two statements of 
changes in net assets and two statements of cash flow statements  

 

010 Paragraphs 76 and 77 require a first-time adopter to either present one, or two statements of financial position, two statements 
of financial performance, two statements of changes in net assets and two statements of cash flow statements depending on 
whether it has elected to present comparative information. In requiring a first-time adopter to present “two statements of financial 
position, two statements of financial performance, two statements of changes in net assets and two statements of cash flow 
statements” a first-time adopter my read the requirements in these paragraphs to be two separate sets of financial statements.  

We therefore recommend that the requirements in paragraph 76 should be clarified to refer to one set of financial statements (as 
in paragraph 77), but with an additional requirement that comparative information from the preceding period should be 
presented as part of these statements were a first-time adopter has elected to present comparative information.   

To illustrate:  

“76(a) Two One statements of financial position with comparative information from the preceding period, and an opening 

Agreed. Staff supports the 
proposal in clarifying 
paragraphs 76 and 77 and 
has highlighted the matter 
to the IPSASB for its 
consideration.  
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statement…..” 

 IPSAS 6, IPSAS 7 and IPSAS 8  

007 Paragraph 88 of the ED appears to make the assumption that all controlled entities will at some point, become a first-time 
adopter of IPSASs.  However, it is feasible that a controlled entity may be a GBE and would, therefore, never adopt IPSASs. 

 Consequently, the AASB recommends the final standard recognises that a controlled entity may be a GBE and refer to the 
appropriate IPSAS regarding consolidating controlled GBEs. Further, thought could be given to articulating whether the 
requirements in paragraph 88 also apply when a controlled GBE transitions to IFRSs later than the controlling entity. 

Noted. However paragraph 
88 and 89 uses the 
phrases “if a controlled 
entity becomes a first-time 
adopter…” and “if a 
controlling entity becomes 
a firt-time adopter…”. Staff 
is of the view that this, by 
implication, does not mean 
that all controlled entities 
will become first-time 
adopters.  

Futhermore, paragraph 5 
determines that this 
pronouncement applies to 
all public sector entities 
other than GBEs.  

Staff is therefore of the 
view that no further 
clarification is needed.  

 IPSAS 13 Leases  

010 Paragraph 94 requires a first-time adopter to classify all existing leases as operating or finance leases based on circumstances 
that existed at the inception of the lease. If, however, the lessee and the lessor agreed to change the provisions of the lease 
(other than renewing the lease) at any time between the date of inception and the date of adoption of accrual basis IPSASs, 
these amendments could impact the classification of the lease as at the date of adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. 

We therefore recommend that the principle in paragraph 94 should be expanded to require that, to the extent that a lessor 
agreed to change the provisions of the lease (other than renewing the lease) at any time between the date of inception of the 
lease  and the date of adoption of accrual basis IPSASs in a manner that would have resulted in a different classification of the 
lease at the date of adoption , the revised agreement should be regarded as a new agreement. The new provisions of the lease 
agreement should thus be considered at the date of adoption of accrual basis IPSASs. This requirement is similar to 

Agreed. Staff supports the 
view that the leases may 
have changed between the 
date of inception and the 
date of adoption of accrual 
basis IPSASs. Staff 
therefore proposes 
amending paragraph 94. 
The matter has been 
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requirements included in IPSAS 13 paragraph 18. highlighted to the IPSASB.  

 IPSAS 31 Intangible Assets  

004 The requirement in paragraph 123 is addressed in the general requirement in paragraph 18 to “Recognize all assets and 
liabilities whose recognition is required by IPSASs.” 

Noted. The proposal to the 
delete paragraph 123 was 
highlighted to the IPSASB 
for its consideration.  

007 Paragraph 123 of the ED appears to preclude an entity from using a deemed cost to recognise an internally generated 
intangible asset; however, the use of the phrase “A deemed cost may not be determined…” may result in some entities 
concluding that a deemed cost may be able to be determined. The Basis for Conclusions (paragraph BC76) is similarly unclear. 
Therefore, the AASB considers that if it is the intention to disallow the use of deemed cost for internally generated intangible 
assets, the final standard should be definitive and state “A deemed cost shall not be used for internally generated intangible 
assets”. 

Noted. The proposal to the 
delete paragraph 123 was 
highlighted to the IPSASB 
for its consideration. 

010 Paragraph 123 requires that a first-time adopter may recognise and/or measure an internally generated intangible asset if it 
meets the definition and recognition criteria in IPSAS 31, even though it has, under its previous basis of accounting, expensed 
such costs. 

We are of the view that the IPSASB should reconsider this exemption from a cost-benefit perspective. Paragraph 64(d) states 
that a first-time adopter may not determine a deemed cost for an internally generated asset, and by implication, paragraph 123 
therefore requires a first-time adopter to have the historical cost information available if the transitional exemption is to be 
applied. If a first-time adopter wants to recognise previously expensed internally generated intangible assets, it should apply 
hindsight, which may be inappropriate, to determine if the requirements in IPSAS 31 were met at that time.  

We therefore propose that paragraph 123 should be deleted.  

Agreed. The proposal to 
the delete paragraph 123 
was highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration. 

 Presentation and Disclosure  

010 We propose that paragraph 126 should clarify whether the disclosures required in this paragraph should be provided only on the 
date of adoption of accrual basis IPSASs, or during the period of transition.  

As we are of the view that the disclosures required in this paragraph should be provided during the period of transition, we 
propose that paragraph 126 starts with the words “During the period of transition…” as opposed to “Where a first-time adopter 
takes advantage…” 

Agree. Staff proposes to 
amend the paragraph as 
proposed in clarifying the 
disclosure and 
presentation requirements.   

012 The FMSB also supports the disclosure requirements in paragraphs 126 through 142 of the ED. The suggested disclosures are The support for the 
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comprehensive and should provide for the complete and adequate disclosure of the entity’s plan for transitioning to the accrual 
basis of accounting as well as provide for the reconciliation of beginning balances to the prior basis of accounting. Such 
disclosures are essential, in the view of the FMSB, to informing the users of the financial statements. We believe that the 
IPSASB has provided for adequate disclosures in the ED. The ED also prohibits retrospective application of IPSASs in some 
areas, particularly where retrospective application would require judgments by management about past conditions. We agree 
with this provision as well. 

disclosure and 
presentation requirements 
are noted.  

015 Paragraph 130 allows a first time adopter that has applied the cash basis of accounting to not present reconciliations to accrual 
based IPSAS financial statements. However paragraph 135 states that where a three year transitional relief is allowed, that all 
items that have been recognized shall be presented in the notes to the financial statements. This would appear contradictory 
and we would encourage that all transitional financial statements are reconciled to the previously approved financial statements 
under either an alternative framework or a cash basis of reporting. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

It is not clear in paragraph 126 to 128 whether these disclosure requirements are required in the first year of adoption of IPSAS 
or over all three year transitional periods. We suggest that IPSASB provide clarity on that disclosure requirement in the three 
year transitional period. 

Noted. Paragraph 135, 
however, only applies 
where a first-time adopter 
has taken advantage of the 
relief period and has 
recognized and/or 
measured items following 
the date of adoption of 
accrual basis IPSASs. This 
has also been illustrated in 
the Impelmentation 
Guidance. In further 
clarifying this, staff 
proposes to include a 
futher explanation in the 
Implementation Guidance.  

Agree. Staff proposes to 
amend the paragraph as 
proposed in clarifying the 
disclosure and 
presentation requirements. 

023 Paragraph 126(c) states the following:  

“Where a first-time adopter takes advantage of the transitional exemptions in this Standard, the following disclosures shall be 
made in the financial statements: 

(c) Where it has taken advantage of the transitional exemption not to eliminate some balances, transactions, revenue and 

Agree. The proposal to 
include an additional 
disclosure requirement has 
been highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
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expenses, the nature of the balances, transactions, revenue and expenses that have been eliminated during the 
reporting period;…” 

We believe such disclosure should be required on the balances, transactions, revenue and expenses that are not eliminated 
rather than those that have been eliminated. This will enable users to understand the nature of those balances, transactions, 
revenue and expenses that have not been eliminated. 

consideration.  

 Date of application of the Standard  

016 Based on paragraph 143 of the ED 53, there was no proposed date for the application of the Standard by the IPSASB. This 
should have been included in the commentary as various countries or entities are at different stages of the adoption process.  
The Board intends to publish this Standard in September 2014 and therefore a proposed period of adoption will be beginning on 
or after 1 January 2016 whilst encouraging earlier application is recommended. This is based on the assumption that entities 
and countries would use part of 2014 and the entire 2015 to provide the needed guidance in the application of this Standard in 
addition to the already existing Standards. 

Noted. As with IFRS 1 the 
proposed IPSAS does not 
have an effective date as it 
will be up to each country 
to decide when they want 
to transition to accrual 
basis IPSASs, and 
whether they will consider 
the proposed transitional 
exemptions in this IPSAS. 
Therefore, no effective 
date will be determined.  

 Cash flow statement  

002 Those countries that have previously implemented the Cash Basis IPSAS should be permitted to reformat their Cash 
Receipts/Cash Payments Statement into the Cash Flow Statement format prescribed by IPSAS 2 for reconciliation with the 
Cash Balance in the Opening Statement of Financial Position. If this is not included in the ED, it should at least be mentioned in 
the Basis for Conclusions or the Implementation Guidance. The Budget to Actual Comparative Statement requires no further 
action since paragraph 1.9 of the Cash Basis IPSAS is already in agreement with IPSAS 24. 

Noted. The IPSASB 
agreed that entities should 
not be required to present 
comparative information 
(see ED 53,75). If this 
requiremetns is included in 
the proposed IPSAS, it will 
contradict the decision 
taken by the IPSASB to 
not require comparative 
information.  

Staff therefore does not 
propose any amendments 
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to the proposed 
pronouncement.  

006 Cash flow statement: the Council observes that it usually is a difficult primary financial statement to set up, in the public sector 
as well as in the private sector. Furthermore, it does not seem practical to present a cash flow statement compliant with IPSASs 
as long as the statement of financial position is not in itself compliant and as long as the classification of flows between 
operating, investing and financing activities is not fully compliant with the requirements in IPSAS 2 Cash Flow Statements. The 
Council therefore strongly believes that allowing flexibility during the transition period to appropriately present the cash flow 
statement is needed. 

Noted. Staff does not 
propose any amendments 
based on the IPSASB 
decision at its December 
2012 meeting. At this 
meeting it was agreed to 
not provide any transitional 
exemptions and provisions 
for cash flow statements 
as users still need cash 
flow information on (a) the 
sources of cash inflows, 
(b) the items on which 
cash was expensed during 
the reporting period and (c) 
the cash balance as at the 
end of the reporting period, 
even though the financial 
statements are prepared 
on an accrual basis.  

011 We have identified the follwoing subject requiring specific relief during the period of transition to IPSASs. 

The cash flow statement is not mentioned in the proposed exemptions. Yet its’ preparation is by nature complex in both the 
private and the public sector. It does not, therefore, seem realistic to require an entity, especially a government organisation with 
very specific characteristics, to prepare an IPSAS-compliant cash flow statement immediately on adoption of new accounting 
rules, without providing any form of relief. 

Noted. Staff does not 
propose any amendments 
based on the IPSASB 
decision at its December 
2012 meeting. At this 
meeting it was agreed to 
not provide any transitional 
exemptions and provisions 
for cash flow statements 
as users still need cash 
flow information on (a) the 
sources of cash inflows, 
(b) the items on which 
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cash was expensed during 
the reporting period and (c) 
the cash balance as at the 
end of the reporting period, 
even though the financial 
statements are prepared 
on an accrual basis. 

 Implementation Guidance  

   

010 Illustrating how comparative information should be presented 

An example illustrating how a first-time adopter should present its first transitional IPSAS financial statements or its first IPSAS 
financial statements as required by paragraphs 76 and 77 should be considered. The example should specifically illustrate how, 
and where, the opening statement of financial position as referred to in paragraphs 76(a) and 77(a) should be presented. 

Noted. This will be 
highlighted to the IPSASB 
for its consideration.  

010 It is questioned how a first-time adopter will explain the basis used to prepare its transitional IPSAS financial statements. It is 
proposed that an entity indicate that it prepares its financial statements using IPSASs, but that it has applied the transitional 
relief provided in First Time Adoption of Accrual Basis IPSASs, and has, as a result, not applied the requirements of the 
following IPSASs…..  

We propose that this should be explained in the propose Standard, and by way of an illustrative example in the Implementation 
Guidance. 

Noted. This will be 
highlighted to the IPSASB 
for its consideration. 

014 This ED 53 has provided transition guidance for all IPSAS on first-time adoption. The effect is that in the case of ‘IPSAS17 – 
Property, plant and equipment’ the transition period has been reduced from 5 years to 3 years.  

In view of the complexity in implementing compliance with this standard especially when dealing with government entities, there 
is need to provide more guidance to adopters to carry out certain preparation in advance of the ‘date of adoption of IPSASs’ to 
be able to complete the compliance within the transition period of 3 years. 

We are however of the view that there exist complexities in compliance with this standard especially when dealing 
with government entities, and suggests that the IPSASB provide more implementation guidance to adopters to 
carry out certain preparation in advance of the ‘date of adoption of IPSASs’ thus facilitate compliance within the 
transition period of 3 years. 

Noted. Staff is however of 
the view that guidance on 
steps to be taken before 
accrual basis IPSASs are 
adopted should be 
developed by each 
jurisdiction as it will 
depend on the systems 
and information available 
to them before their 
adoption of accrual basis 
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IPSASs.  

017 With respect to some items, however, due to a large number of exemptions included in the ED, it is difficult to understand the 
relation between those that affect fair presentation and compliance with accrual basis IPSASs, and those that do not.  In 
particular, although both paragraphs 42 and 87 are presented as exemptions for IPSAS 5, Borrowing Costs, it is unclear as to 
under which conditions they would apply. Therefore, we believe further explanations, including illustrative examples of these 
conditions, would be desirable in the Basis for Conclusions (e.g., in BC57 or succeeding paragraphs). 

Noted. The explanation in 
BC 57 will be elaborated to 
explain the transitional 
exemption.  

025 Apart from providing relief to entities, IPSASB may consider also offering practical training and implementation assistances to 
induce more first time adopters and to help those entities in the transition to expedite their implementation progress. 

Noted. The IPSASB has, 
however, acknowledged 
that countries 
transitioning to accrual 
accounting should 
develop various 
guidance in assisting 
local entities with the 
adoption of accrual 
basis IPSASs as this is 
outside the scope of this 
project.  

 Impact proposed pronouncement on Study 14 Cash Basis IPSAS  

010 Impact of this Exposure Draft on Study 14 

We propose that the IPSASB should provide explanatory guidance on how the development of this Exposure Draft impacts 
Study 14 Transition to the Accrual Basis of Accounting: Guidance for Governments and Government Entities. This guidance 
should be included in Study 14 to alert preparers to the possible impact that the adoption of this Exposure Draft may have on 
their transition to accrual accounting, and will also ensure that entities prepare well in advance prior to the adoption of accrual 
basis IPSASs. 

Noted. This will be 
highlighted to the IPSASB 
for its consideration. 

010 Preparing consolidated financial statements for whole-of-government  

Paragraph 88 and 89 of this Exposure Draft provide guidance on when the controlled entity, investor or venturer adopts accrual 
basis IPSASs either before or after the controlling entity, associate or joint venture. We are of the view that Study 14 Transition 
to the Accrual Basis of Accounting: Guidance for Governments and Government Entities, from a whole-of-government 
perspective, should emphasize the benefits of adopting accrual basis IPSASs at the same time. This will ensure that relevant 

Noted. Staff proposes that 
the IPSASB should 
undertake a project to 
update Study 14 with all 
recently issued 
pronouncements. This will 
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and reliable information that meet user needs, are provided when whole-of-government financial statements are prepared. be highlighted to the 
IPSASB for its 
consideration 

 Drafting of pronouncement   

015 We note that we have found the wording in the ED to be somewhat difficult to follow and requires repeated reading to digest 
the nature of the relief provided. We suggest the final standard may benefit from a similar structure to that used currently in 
IFRS 1.  The overarching principles should be stated clearly with the details regarding exemptions for relief provided in an 
appendix similar to IFRS 1.  As a result, the three year transition period could be stated briefly in the overarching principles but 
the details on how the transition works and how the financial statements are presented during the transition period may be 
included in an appendix. 

Noted. Staff notes that the 
IPSASB did debate the 
format of the proposed 
IPSAS and agreed that all 
the principles should be 
included in the IPSAS to 
improve the 
understandability of the 
ED. It was also agreed that 
a different structure should 
be followed in comparison 
with IFRS 1 as the project 
was not a convergence 
project. 

020 Notwithstanding our support above, CIPFA is concerned that the drafting of the ED IPSAS is not sufficiently clear and will be 
difficult for preparers to understand. 

We would note that IFRS 1 is drafted to aid understandability by using black letter text sparingly, to indicate the principles or 
core ideas behind its requirements. Further detail is provided in grey letter text and in quite substantial annexes.  

The ED IPSAS sets out requirements for a combination of ‘first’ and ‘transitional’ publications, and this results in a standard 
which is necessarily more complicated than IFRS 1. However, the requirements are listed sequentially, and do not make 
significant use of the structuring approach used by IFRS 1. There is a large volume of black letter text which covers both high 
level and more detailed matters, and material on handling the move from ‘transitional’ to ‘first’ financial statements is often 
duplicated. 

While we understand that IPSASs do not adopt an identical drafting approach to that used by IFRS, we would suggest that the 
content of the ED IPSAS could more clearly separate the main principles and the supporting detail.  

An alternative approach which would also be presentationally simpler would be to have an IPSAS on first time adoption which 
focuses on ‘first IPSAS financial statements’ and a Recommended Practice Guideline on transition. However, this might not 

Noted. Staff notes that the 
IPSASB did debate the 
format of the proposed 
IPSAS and agreed that all 
the principles should be 
included in the IPSAS to 
improve the 
understandability of the 
ED. It was also agreed that 
a different structure should 
be followed in comparison 
with IFRS 1 as the project 
was not a convergence 
project.  
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achieve the degree of support for disciplined transition to full IPSAS which the Board intends.  

 Classification of exemptions and exceptions  

004 Exemptions are voluntary divergences from retrospective application while exceptions address where retrospective application 
is prohibited. The impairment requirements in paragraphs 96 to 98, 106 to 108, and 118 to 120 require prospective application 
but are included as exemptions rather than exceptions? 

Noted. An alternative 
classification based on 
voluntarily and mandatory 
exemptions has been 
highlighted to the IPSASB 
for its consideration.  

 Readiness to adopt accrual basis IPSASs  

013 The ED does not state how prepared an entity is expected to be in at the date of adoption to IPSASs. The AASB recommends 
that this could be articulated in the Basis for Conclusions. The AASB is concerned that entry into the three-year period might 
present a disincentive to expressing a public commitment to adoption of IPSASs.  

 

Noted. ED 53.14 noted 
that a first-time adopter 
should apply the effects of 
the IPSASs retrospectively 
unless otherwise permitted 
in the IPSASs. This will be 
elaborated in the 
Implementation Guidance 
to clarify the retrospective 
and prospective 
application of the IPSAS. 
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   Geographic Breakdown 
  

   Region Respondents Total 
Africa and the Middle East 3, 10, 13, 14, 16, 19 6 
Asia 1, 17, 23, 25 4 
Australasia and Oceania 5, 7 2 
Europe 6, 9, 11, 20, 21 5 
Latin America and the Caribbean 8, 24 2 
North America 2, 4, 12 3 
International 15, 18, 22 3 
Total   25 
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 Functional Breakdown 
  

   Function Respondents Total 
Accountancy Firm 15 1 
Audit Office 3, 21 2 
Member or Regional Body 8, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 22, 23 10 
Preparer 1, 11, 12, 25 4 
Standard Setter/Standards Advisory Body 4, 5, 6, 7, 9, 10 6 
Other 2, 24 2 
Total   25 
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   Linguistic Breakdown: 
  

   Language Respondents Total 
English-Speaking 2, 5, 7, 10, 12, 13, 15, 16, 18, 19, 20 11 
Non-English Speaking 6, 8, 9, 11, 17, 21, 24, 25 8 
Combination of English and Other 1, 3, 4, 14, 22, 23 6 
Total   25 

  

 

 

English-
Speaking

44%

Non-English 
Speaking

32%

Combination 
of English and 

Other
24%

Respondents by Language

Agenda Item 6.3 
Page 3 of 3 

 


	Agenda Item 6 - Cover Memo
	Agenda Item 6.1 - Issues paper
	Objectives of this Paper
	Background
	Section 1 – General comments
	Section 2 – Specific matters for Comment
	SMC 1(b) – Goal in providing relief to first-time adopters
	SMC 3 – Three year relief period for the recognition and/or measurement of specific assets and/or liabilities
	Alternative relief periods
	Jurisdictions should determine their own transitional period
	Other matters
	Section 3 – Comments on specific principles in the ED
	Definitions
	First transitional IPSAS financial statements
	Transitional relief for the recognition and/or measurement per class of assets
	Retrospective application of borrowing costs
	Measurement alternatives for interests in investments
	Comparative information
	Classification of existing finance and operating leases
	Recognition of internally generated intangible assets
	Presenting a cash flow statement during the period of transition
	Implementation Guidance
	Impact of the proposed IPSAS on Study 14
	Appendix A

	Agenda Item 6.2 - Summary of Reponses to ED 53
	List of Respondents
	General Comments on the ED
	Specific Matter for Comment (SMC) 1:
	STAFF ASSESSMENT OF RESPONSES RECEIVED
	Summary of responses to Specific Matter for Comment (SMC) 1(b):
	Specific Matter for Comment (SMC) 2:
	Summary of responses to Specific Matter for Comment 2(b):
	Specific Matter for Comment (SMC) 3:
	COMMENTS ON SPECIFIC PRINCIPLES IN EXPOSURE DRAFT

	Agenda Item 6.3 - Analysis of Respondents

